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MD$Z"b0()G"BfO)-Hg"h0()QE(7$0(

5IC-JK2CL'MNOP&#'Q9&'IC*RS#'T%-U&#'V;&' "#$%&#'W#%XY' ,OH
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$+Ss,"L2]•,-"L~58r,-"LŽ2n"k5K]o"Uo"•U"EKY,-":5~5(X"0B8s="CD-4U""""" 

$•)i@-"•4svS"5="‘Š*U"s’2B@-"/G“7M9-"CD-4U""""" 
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".5]">"&'()*"•1~"¤-""mKJ5*"$¹/5b,5~"+7M-/4"x="•s)h,"+`4E]"/E*"L2)fY,-"+ •̀(="os~"sB*"$/GK@-"-‚n">"L)SE',-"LS45Sr,-U"NrVh@-"+`œ|"mVv~"Ÿ-d/5~"5’2*?="-EP,-"s2(,-"œ7YSU"

">"+`58e]"LVh\"™S™Y`U"•/U4U"‰?@-"LJ5V£"k5B /̀9-"c]"5p,e|"x="Rf]U"5n9E`"†r|o":52,EŽ(=U"˜D5ºU"Ns]"¤-"L*5HQ"L2,Us,-":58eY,-"rSs="q61="R€\"°2X"1989

"L2*?@-"LVhP,-"k5K]o"mno"x="œ7YSU"…&'()*">"L2*?="L]Efi="œ„o"R“»"‹‚,-U"…&'()*"%´rY,-"•1h,5~"N™ž"AUr*"Š(1="-EP,-"s2(,-"&‡] …1994".5]">U""$5pt/5|U"&'()*

$.9-"yFG]z"´rY,-"•1h),"LY~57,-"LYM-E,-"L2f2)89-U"L2~rY,-

"x="xVf77,"•rD-U4"mno"L)V2n"N45] ~"•1h,-"rSE'`"c]"RfY*"$®sB,-"•1h,".5Y,-"rSs@-"q61="+2,E7~">?@-""RfY,-"mK|">"-EP,-"s2(,-"j5Y="¨-rbJ-"NU/Œ 2007".5Y,-"sp\U"

"s2(,-"j5Y="®or`"…2012".5]">U"$>?@-"¼ME,-">"•1h,-"N/E}U"/U4"x="d™]"G="Lªsv7(="L2*?=":5=s|U":5i71="Wea-"c]":sf7]-"07,-"NsSsi,-"•1h,-"L8e'J-"N-/5i=

$L=5]"N/E6~">?@-"A5'B,-U"k5K]9-"ZE1h,-"L=s|">"5n/U4"®Ef)="RVP~"R’Y*"°2X"&'()*">"ZE1h,-"L2Yft"N/-4Q"•)i="-EP,-

">"LºEv)="N45Sd"r½o"G=""L28E(,-"+76XU"L2*?@-"+`5=s|"LY8/"C2ME`"c]"LS-sh,-"‚1="RfY*"….5Y,-"•rSsf„"012'()3,-"‹/5i7,-"•1h,-"¤Q"-EP,-"s2(,-"mKJ-"…2013"/-Œ—">U

"N/45h="œ7]-"G="…(Convertible Bonds)"RSEv7),"L)~58":-s1M"/-s}Q"ŠSra"x]"‰?@-"{5="®o/"C*r~"NsD-/"NE'|"-EP,-"s2(,-"‚b`- …2014".5]">U"$+Ssf7Y="Ns]58

"$L2)v@-"L2,GMor,-"WE(,-"Š2fY`U"rSE'`">"LMEf)="N/E6~"ƒfpMo"…&'()3~">?@-"A5'B,-">"L8Eh(="•žU"NrSst

"L(M<f„"RfYS"EnU"$‹/G“7M9-"5p]-/ŒU"‹452(,-"L,Us,-"WUs1}"R“»"‹‚,-"…012'()3,-"/G“7M9-"WUs1}"N/-4Q"•)i£"Ÿ-d/5~"Ÿ-EK]"-EP,-"s2(,-"Rº"…2002".5]">"+(2MO`"‚1=U

"L)SEa"LS/G“7M9-"sD-EY,-"m2IY`U"…L2h1t9-":-/G“7M9-"¾‚tU"R|-s,-"¤-"5p`-/G“7M-" ’Rt"+2tE7~"L=-s7(@-"LS456789-"L2f17,-">"L,5’Y3,-"Lfn5(@-"¤Q"‰sp`"L)B7(="LS/G“7M-

$L=5]"N/E6~"012'()3,-"qYP,-U"WUs16,-"¿,56,"Rt9-

"$LXE73@-"®sB,-"LY=5t"k51=o"•)i="LSEK]U"…012'()3,-"{5Bªl-"C*/"45v`-"LM5D/U"…{53aÀ,"RhB7(@-"&'()*"L(M<="N/-4-"•)i="LM5D/"-EP,-"s2(,-"R€PS"G„"

 Young Presidents)"L~5P,- ":-452B,- "L(M<= "…{G]9- "{5t/ "L2Yft " 5pfno "…L2,U4U "L2)v= ":5(M<=U ":GI1= "Ns] "N/-4Q "•,5i= "> "¼\5J "EK] "+Jo "G„

"…®5h]"4Efv="L(M<=U"…FU5Y7,-"L(M<=U"…(Palestine Power and Generating Company) L212'()3,-"L85',-"s2,E`"L„;U"…(Organization YPO

""$L2~rY,-"‰/56@-"45v`-">"EK]"-EP,-"s2(,-"Fo"G„"$:5*r]"Á5S"L(M<=U"…(Education for Employment) ˜2ºE7,-"Rt-"x="m2)Y7,-"L(M<=U

$m6),"51,53ao"L2YftU"…Â5Sr,-"N™ž"‹45JU"…NatHealth°)2n":5JÃ"L„;U"…”-r8Ä,"˜S/"L(M<="5pfno":5(M<="Ns]"N/-4Q"•)i="Ÿ5B~5M"®or`"s8"-EP,-"s2(,-"F5„"G„

56(7J()9*:;)

"
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"$/G“7Me,"012'()3,-"´rY,-"•1h,-">"FG7D9-":52)fY,"Ÿ-rSs="RfY),"5nsY~"RB7J-"s8U"…L212'()3,-"sB1,-"L')M"•2MO`":5S-s~">"ZE1~"Lh8-r="•hb„"&'()*">"Rf]

"x=U"…07SEV,-"unl-"•1h,-">"L2D5PJg-"4EBY),"L2JG7D9-":e2p(7,-"NrD-s,"‘{Uo"Ÿ-rSs="mª"x=U"…¸2Dr,-"Ar3),":52)fY),"rSsf„"07SEV,-"‹/5i7,-"•1h,5~"Šv7,-"ŒQ"…´rY,-"w2)b,-">"Rf]

":5„;"L]Efi@"Ÿ52,5="Ÿ-rSs="mª"x=U"…ƒSEV,-"#"01S™@-"˜ME2,-"u]U"™S™Y,-"sh]"L„;">"N/-4g-"•)i@"Ÿ-/5P7(=U"Å2737,-"NrD-s,"Ÿ-rSs="Rf]"mª"…RfY,-"•31~"01aE,-"r'8"•1~">"mª

$F5'B,-"x(v@-"sh]"s2(),"LY~57,-":9U5B@-

"FGH"WUs1}"N/-4QU"ÆN45tQÃ"´U/Ul-"0]516,-"°Ssv7,-"w=5Jœ,"j5@-"m]s),"‘{Uo"Ÿ-/5P7(="mª"x=U"…/E„‚@-"•1h),"LY~57,-"jÇ-"qM5v,-"L„•,"Ÿ-rSs="F4/l-"•1~">"Rf]"F4/l-">

$Ÿ52,5="Ÿ-/5P7(="•Y@-"L]Efi="¤Q"5nsY~"mKJ-U"…w=5Jœ),"C~57,-"L2]516,-"”UrB,-

$´U/Ul-"/G“7M9-"•1~"w=5Jr~"†s,"FG7D-"rSsf„"LS/EM">"Rf]U

Nsv7@-"LV)f@-%"Fs1,"•21V72,E~"x="k56Xg-">".E)~4U":U•~">"L2~rY,-"LY=5i,-"x="{G]l-"N/-4Q">"®ES/E,5Vh,-"N45p\"c]" ÈR}5X"‹sS5Y,-"s2(,-

.1951 L1M"&'()*"#"L28•,-"L]/™@-"s2,-E="x="532n"s2YM$4

"x="jUs,-"456789-U"­52B,-"456789-">"•7(t5@-"Lt/4"c]"R6X"1979 .5]">U …1974 .5]"L2J4/‡l-"LY=5i,-"x="k56Xg-U"456789-">"®ES/E,5Vh,-"Lt/4"c]"532n"$4"R6X

"$1984 .5]"LY=5i,-"•3J"x="LSsB1,-"LSrI1,-"c]"™2„[,-"C="456789-">"•-/E7„s,-"c]"R6X"G„"…-s1„"#"{5S[JE="- McGill LY=5t
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"L=de,-":-œb,-"¾5(7„-U":5=E)Y@-"k-rª-"‰sp~"…L2,U4U"L2)v=":52,5Y*U"Rf]":5\/UU":-rT<=">"L(M<@-"x]"&)“f="L„/5P="¤Q"L*5Hg5~""$L2,Us,-U"L2)v@-":-œb,-"{45h`U"FU5Y7,-

$+,5i=">"R„

"01=5K,"L2,Us,-"L2Yfi),"LS‚2317,-"L1i),-">"52BSr*o"{G\U"¼MUl-"W•,-"x]"e“f="CD-4E,-"FGK,"L212'()3,-"L(M<@-"¾5b7J-"Â5@-".5Y,-"{e|"m`"s8"+Jo"…r„‚,5~"rSsi,-"x=U

$CD-4E,-"FGH"LfIJo"ÍbS"5£"L2,Us,-"L=5Y,-":5M52(,-"°Ssv`U"mMr~"L1i),-"•‚n"·1Y`"°2X"…CD-4E,-

"RK*o"C="mi(1S"5£"52,U4U"52)v="51)fY~"k5B /̀9-">"rf7(1M"51Jo"xSs„<="…5p23ºE="L*5„U"…L(M<@-"N/-4Q"•)i="k5K]oU"•2Dr,"rVP,-"RS™i~".sB`o"Fo"9Q"01Y(S"9"….57b,-">

$012'()3,-">?@-"RfY,-"/-rB7M-"R2hM">"51*-snoU"517,5M/"&BBv=U"…A5'B,-"-‚n">"L“Ssv,-"L2,Us,-":5M/G@-

\$=C0()2s(\
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<@>+T*P0()7",%/J() (KL;.1
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$""""""L,5'h,-"{sY=U"…uV,-"q)',-U"…jGtg-"uv@-"w`51,5„":-;<="NsY~"LJ5Y7M95~".5Y,-"-‚n"{e|"012'()3,-"456789-"k-4o"¿2HE`"m72M"°2v~"…2016".5Y),"uV,-"456789-":-;<="mno"”r]"m72M"…rSrB7,-"x="k™i,-"-‚n">

MvRl8()€&'()•{"@0(.1.1

$L2t/5b,-"¿1@̂-U"”UrB,-"x="{’Ef@-"Óep7M9-"W53Jg-">"x(v7,-"_Y~"¤Q"L*5Hg5~"…‹/G“7M9-"W53Jg-"N45S™,"ŸLi27J"…/9U4"FE2)="8,037j-EX"‘¿h62,"2015".5Y,-"x]"%4"Lh(1~"Ÿ5]53 /̀-"0B2Bv,-"jGtg-"uv@-"w`51,-"sp\

M€&'()•{"@0()};)72P0()‚>,Z.1.2 

"¿h62,"2015".5Y,-"x]"%1.2"Lh(1~"uv@-"w`51,-"x="4r3,-"q26J"C3 /̀-"W52(,-"-‚p~U"…4r3,-"R|4"c]"45678e,"uY3,-"rªl-"•VY1S"°2v~"…Cf7i@-">"L2n5*r,-"†E7(@"®52Bf„"uv@-"w`51,-"x="4r3,-"q26J";<=".sb7(‡S

"sSs\"/56X"”r*"x="012'()3,-"456789-"5p1="¬5YS"07,-"LhY6,-"A5HUÀ,"{E|s,-"¼ME7=">"•hV,-"Wr3,-"-‚n"4EYS"…R2D-ÁQ">"4r3,-"R|4"¼ME7="C="ƒJ/E8"5="-ŒQ"Ÿ-st"ŸL)2ŽH"q(1,-"•‚n"·Bh`"•,Œ"C=U"…"/9U4"1765.9"j-EX
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'(2016-2012)'_810&'Z-,./01&#'rl4#'xEC-&#'|^'$h1&#'b,kX':(2)'Q9{
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.2015".5Y,-"x]"%7.4"ƒ€)~"s8"/G“7M9-">"Ef1,-"Lh(J"siJ"R~5B@-">"…%5.4"j-EX

"Ef1,-"{sY="Ct-r`"G„"…%5.5"Lh(1~":-/456,-">"Ef1,-"{sY="”53bJ-"wD571,-":rpºo"°2X"…:-/456,-"jGtQ">"N45S™,-"miX"WE3S"/-sB£"4-•7M9-"miX"N45S™,"Ÿ-rIJ"™iY,-"Lh(J"ƒBfY`"…‹/5i7,-"F-™2@-">"™iY,-"s2Y}"c]
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$N™ž"A5'8">"%46.1"R~5B="%45.6"L2~r€,-"L3K,-">"L)=5Y,-"†EB,-">"L„/5P@-"Lh(J"ƒ€)~
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"$2016".5]"{e|"%26.9"¤-"2015".5]"{e|"%25.9"x="L)=5Y,-"†EB,-">"&„/5P@-"&~"x="L,5'h,-"{sY="C3 /̀-

"$µ5JÄ,"%44.7"R~5B="/E„‚),"%22.2"›)~"sB*"•1i,-"†E7(="c]"5=o"…L2~r€,-"L3K,-">"%18.2"R~5B="…%41.7"N™ž"A5'8">"›)~"°2X"…N™ž"A5'8U"L2~r€,-"L3K,-"&~"L,5'h,-"{sY=">"Ÿ-•h„":U537,-"{-™S"5="°2X

<@>+T*P0()„…'()†"+b0() (KL;.2

"x="&'()*">"j5@-"/-rB7M9-"c]"LI*5v@-"¤Q"L212'()3,-"sB1,-"‡L')M"·Y(`"°2v~"….5]"RVP~"456789-"†E7(="x(v`"c]"Ÿ5M52B=">?@-"A5'B,-":-;<=">"/E'7,-"œ7Y‡S"ŒQ"…012'()3,-"456789-"x="o™i7S"9"Èk™t">?@-"A5'B,-

 :-;<@-"•)`":-/E'`"mnl"ÈÍb)="uS"G2*U"…2015".5Y),":-;<@-"•)`"C="ŸLJ/5B="5pD-4o":-;<=">"Ÿ51(v`"2016".5Y,"&'()*">"L)=5Y,-"ZE1h),"L2(2Dr,-"L2,5@-":-;<@-":rpºo"°2X"…:-;<@-"•‚n"&(v`"{e|
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) "F̂ 0() ">H=:0(3) "T1L'()G"H0()†"+b0(
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"…%89.1"j-EX"Lh(1,-"+~"ƒ€)~"‹‚,-U"Š~5(,-".5Y,-"x]%1.35"/-sB£"Ÿ5H53bJ-"ŸL)i(="2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"%87.9"j-EX"ƒ€)~"sB)*"…CD-4E,-"jGtQ"x="N•h„"Lh(J"c]"LS/5i7,-"ZE1h,-"†s,"CD-4E,-"miX"ŒEv7(S"·

$%10.9"ƒ€)~"07,-U"Š~5(,-".5Y,-"x]"%11"Lh(1~"Ÿ5]53 /̀-"ŸLBBv="…%12.1"L2=eMg-"ZE1h,-">"CD-4E,-"Lh(J"ƒ€)~"R~5B@-">

.%1.16"Lh(1~"”53bJ-"LBBv="2015".5Y,-">"%86.5"C="LJ/5B="2016".5Y,-">"%85.5"LS/5i7,-"ZE1h,-">"&]4̂E@-"4s]"Lh(J"ƒ€)~
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.2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"%46.7"R~5B="2016".5Y,-">":-4EtE@-">5}"x="%48.8"+‡7h(J"5=":e2p(7,-"•‚n"ƒ)V\"s8U"…%17.9
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"FE2)="178.9"5n/s8"N45S™~U"2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="1,160.5"R~5B="2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="1,339.4"j-EX">?@-"d5pi),"yN;5h@-"•ž":e2p(7,-z"j5@-"™„r@-"Lˆ58"¹/5|":5=-™7,9-"/-sB="›)~"""·

.2015".5Y,-">"%9.4"R~5B="2016".5Y,-">":-4EtE@-">5}"x= %9.7"+‡7h(J"5="N;5h@-"•ž":e2p(7,-"•‚n"ƒ)V\"s8U"…%15.4"5p7h(JU"/9U4

M5‹H%'()->ZR%EJ() W>CT%0( .2.3

".2015".5Y,-">"%2.14"Ï~"ŸLJ/5B="2016".5Y,-">"%2.18"j-EX"ƒ€)~"°2X"…%1.9"Lh(1~">?@-"d5pi,-">"N;5h@-":e2p(7,-"jGtQ"¤Q"ŸL~E(1="L)=5Y,-"•ž":e2p(7,-"Lh(J"ƒY3 /̀-"""·

.%2.3"+7h(J"”53bJ5~"‹o"…2015".5Y),"%67.37"R~5B="2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"%65.85"›)h7,">?@-"d5pi,-"†s,"L)=5Y,-"•ž":e2p(7,-"¤Q":566b@-"L2'€`"Lh(J"ƒK3bJ-"""·

.2015".5Y), %4.03"R~5B="%4.70"j-EX"2016".5Y,-">"ƒ€)~"°2X"%16.7"Lh(1~">?@-"d5pi),":e2p(7,-"jGtQ"¤Q"L8eY,-":-Œ"‰-raÀ,"LXE1f@-"L2JG7D9-":e2p(7,-"Lh(J"ƒY3 /̀-"""·

„…'()†"+b*0)c(7O() (KL; .2.4

N"'()Œ[6)-#"PF)-_TZ))x[

"Fo"G„"…%12"/-sB£"{5@-"®o/"LS53„"Lh(1,"Õ4l-"sv,-"4sv`"L212'()3,-"sB1,-"L')M":G2)Y`"FO~"ŸG)]"…2015".5Y),"%18.32"R~5B= …2016".5Y),"%17.96"j-EX">?@-"d5pi,-"jGtg"{5@-"®o/"LS53„"Lh(J"ƒ€)~
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->&w20())x•
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.2015".5Y),"%1.47"R~5B="2016".5Y), %1.48"j-EX">?@-"d5pi,-"†s,":-4EtE@-"¼ME7="¤Q"LhSÖ,-"Rh8"sD5Y,-"Lh(J"ƒ€)~"""·
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:2016)G"H0()NWX)c"SdO()e$@_0()c(7[)) (6$+{)tsO)Žh*;)€#)R>‡3

)‚{"B'(3)†32P0()7Id)x[

"LM52(,"Š2h'`"-‚nU"…Ÿ5]r*"(35)"5n‡/-sB="N45S™~"‹o"2015"LS5pJ">"274"R~5B="…2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"309"&'()*">"L)=5Y,-"‰/56f),"q`5V@-U"AUr3,-"4s]"›)~"°2X"…2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"q`5V@-U"AUr3,-"4s]"4-4d-

$/Epfi),"L=sB@-":5=sb,-"Nk53„"N45Sd"‰sp~"L212'()3,-"sB1,-"L')M"5p`sf7]-"07,-"Ar37,-

Š+T*‡)„)-*;"H0()e$@_0() "w$*+;3) (7$l$;x•

"R~5B="…%12.7 5p‡7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)= 1,564.3 5n‡/s8"šN45S™~"…2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)= 12,295.1"R~5B="/9U4"FE2)="13,859.5"j-EX"2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ"&'()*">"L)=5Y,-"ZE1h,-":-4EtE=">5}"›)~"""" 

.2015".5Y,-"{e|"%6.6"5p‡7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)="759.6"5n‡/s8"šN45Sd

"R~5B= …%12.4"5p7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)="1,344.6"5n‡/s8"šN45S™~"…2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="10,831.2"R~5B="/9U4"FE2)="12,175.8"j-EX"2016 .5Y,-"LS5pJ"&'()*">"L)=5Y,-"ZE1h,-":5~E)'=">5}"›)~"""" 

.2015".5Y,-"{e|"%7.5"5p‡7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)= 759.7"5n‡/s8"šN45Sd

"R~5B="…%15"5p‡7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)="219.7"5n‡/s8"N45S™~ …2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="1,463.9"R~5B="/9U4"FE2)="1,683.6"j-EX"2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ"&'()*">"L)=5Y,-"ZE1h,-"†s,"L2V)@-"WEBX"jGtQ"›)~"""" 

2015".5Y,-"{e|"%0.01"+‡7h(JU"/9U4"˜,o"108.7"•‡/s8"F56BJ

"89.7"5n‡/s8"N45S™~U"…2015".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="1,111.6"R~5B="2016".5Y,-"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="1,201.3"j-EX"k5K]l-"ZE1h,-"†s,"y&'()*"¹/5|U"R|-4":-s1MU"mpMoz":-/G“7M9-"AEfi="/-sB="›)~""" 

.2015".5Y,-">"%9"R~5B="2016".5Y,-">":-4EtE@-">5}"x="%8.7"+‡7h(J"5=":-/G“7M9-"•‚n"ƒ)’V\U"…%8.1"5p‡7h(JU"/9U4"FE2)=

2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'g./0†'‚'+0^CP&#'T%-U0&'M#$%H%4#'y)H#':(10)'Q9{
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:(2016-2010))5•P*0)c"SdO()e$@_*0)v"'()c(7O() (KL;)ts[)x 

 (2016-2010) 'yC4#'I#$S#'M#w3^'c}Y (4)'G7;H

+U/-&#

M#$%H%4#'y)H#'‡#'MN,F/K&#'‚C@'+U/X

GC4#'ˆY\'+<C1B'+U/X

•+U<‰&#'QU>€M#$%H%4#'Š2%K^'•R';"CP&#'+U/X

MN,F/K&#'y)H#'‡#'+0^CP&#'‹a'MN,F/K&#'‚C@'+U/X

'+,&C4#'?#\7:#'‚'M#\)JK2:#'+U/X
M#$%H%4#'y)H#'‡#

47.7%

8.5%

2.18%

17.96%

1.48%

45.6%

8.8%

2.14%

18.32%

1.47%

40.8%

9.5%

2.55%

18.94%

1.66%

39.4%

9.0%

2.9%

20.0%

1.9%

41.0%

8.8%

3.1%

20.3%

1.8%

37.4%

10.4%

2.8%

21.1%

1.9%

32.1%
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10.6%

3.1%

21.4%

2.1%

 (2016-2006)''_810&'g./0†'‚'+0^CP&#'T%-U0&'+,904#'?%fd7'MCL%0.4#7'M#$%H%4#'‚C@'‚'‹ŒK&#':(11) Q9{
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1960

 2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'T%-U0&'bEC94#7'W7h1&#'$;R'(5)'G7;H

g./0†'‚'+0^CP&#'T%-U&#
2016 pCP&#'‚

+,0l4#'T%-U&#

_;†#%&#'T%-U&#

puWup'g./0†'•-L'

ˆ;f&#'•-L

Z-i%&#'•-U&#

Z-,./01&##'Z^N2:#'•-U&#'

ŽhP&#'Z^N2:#'•-U&#

Z-,./01&#'\)JK2:#'•-L

C1k&#'•ƒ^

ŽhP&#'•ƒ4#'•\CfP&#'•-U&#

ZK<%9&#'6$\:#'•-U&#

ŽhP&#'•-U&#

()R'_h}Cf&#'•-L

Q<%OK&#7'_\CoK0&'(C92:#'•-L

($\:#'•-L

6$\:#'r}:#'•-U&#

6$\:#'•\CoK&#'•-U&#

A,2mK&#'‘<\CE+<CFX'‚'bEC94#7'W7h1&#'$;R
2016'pCR

+<CFX'‚'M#$%H%4#'y)H#
•\:7$'(%,04CL€''2016''pCP&#
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"M->+•%0()ƒ"+Z))))·

D$Z"b0()G"BfO)-Hg"h0()QE(7$0()x[

"j-Ev,"4EY`"CD-4E,-"•‚n"FO~"ŸG)] …%8.7 ƒ€)~"A53 /̀-"Lh(1~U"2015".5]"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="8,936.3"Ï~"LJ/5B="2016".5]"LS5pJ">"/9U4"FE2)="9,712.9"j-EX"L(M<@-"FEJ58".5VXl"LYH5b,-"kefY,-"CD-4U"ƒ€)~

.2015".5]"LS5pJ">"/9U4"6,141"›)~"LYS4U"¼ME7=U"…A4E="˜,o"1,455"Ï~"LJ/5B="2016".5Y,"/9U4"6,343"›)~"LYS4U"¼ME7£"…A4̂E="˜,o"1,531

(%XCf0&'+P’Cj&#'INOP&#' "#$7 :(13)'Q9{

/9U4"FE2)= 10,595.8"k5K]9-"ZE1h,-"†s,"kefY,-"CD-4U

"LYH5b,-"CD-4E,-
FEJ5B,-".5VX9

91.7%

"•51“7(@-"CD-4E,-
FEJ5B,-".5VX-"x=

8.3%

2016''pCP&#'+<CFX'‚'T%-U0&'bEC94#7'W7h1&#'$;R':(12)'Q9{
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2016'pCP&#'+<CFX'‚'IC*RS#'T%-U&#'V;&'INOP&#' "#$7'y)Hz'|^'%91.7'“”KU/X'C^'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'•0–9{

A;"B0"w)-Z$=S'()QE(7$0()x•

'—2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)Hz'|^ %14.2'“”KU/X'C^'•Vhs”S#'MNOP&CL'CF&$CP<'C^'7Y'\:7$'•:˜'_eR'•7C/<'7Y'|R'C}”;,@\'Qf<'ZK&#' "#$%&#€'(%XCf&#'pC9dY'™q†7'Q^C9&CL'+X%O*4#' "#$%&#'•09{
'983'š0L'+P<$7'Š2%K›'W$%^'D&Y'1,324'y#%l&'$%PE'2015'pCR'+<CFX'‚'\:7$'(%,0^'1,301'œL'+X\Cf^'•#\:7$'997'š0L'+P<$7'Š2%K›7'W$%^'D&Y'1,386'y#%l&'$%PE'—\:7$'(%,0^'1,382'ž”\#;f^'C^'•Œ0L'Ÿ,d

.%90.5'y#%d'2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cF”P"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR $%4#'$;R'y)Hz'|^'Q^C9&CL'cF”P"#$7'+X%O*4#'gR $%4#'$;R'+U/X'•Œ0L'Ÿ,d'—•#\:7$

.2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cF”P"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR $%4#'$;R'y)Hz'|^ %90.5'y#%d'Q^C9&CL'cF”P"#$7'+X%O*4#'gR $%4#'$;R'+U/X'•Œ0L

.2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)Hz'|^'%14.2'“”KU/X'C^'Q^C9&CL'+X%O*4#' "#$%&#'•09{

j">Ekl)-Z$=S'()QE(7$0()x 

'pCR'+<CFX'‚'\:7$'(%,0^'7,635'œL'•+X\Cf^'2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'\:7$'(%,0^'8,331'y#%d'•Œ0L';f†'#'•C,"̀ H'+X%O*4#'•Y'#'Vhs”S#'MNOP&CL'CF&$CP<'C^'7Y'\:7$'•:˜'_eR'•R';<`E'ZK&#'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'C^Y
.2016 pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)Hz'|^'%85.8'“”KU/X'C^' ™Q9]K&'—2015

'Š2%K›'W $%^'D&Y'132 œL'+X\Cf^'2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'•#\:7$'57,173'š0L'+P<$7'Š2%K›'—(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cF”P"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR$%4#'$;R'y)Hz'|^'%9.5'“”KU/X'C^'(%09]<'W$%^'D&Y'146'y#%l&' "#$%&#'ž¡}'$%PE7
.2015'pCR'+<CFX'‚'•#\:7$'57,962'š0L'+P<$7

2016'pCP&#'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cF”P"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR $%4#'$;R'y)Hz'|^'%9.5'y#%d'•C,"̀ H'cF”P"#$7'+X%O*4#'gR$%4#'$;R'+U/X'•Œ0L

2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)Hz'|^'%85.8'“KU/X'C^'•C,"̀ H'+X%O*4#' "#$%&#'•0–9{

Ma6$P0()i#$H%0()x‘

uT%-L'+¢N¢'=BY'V;&'%53.3'“”KU/X'C^7'—%45.2'“”KU/X'C^'g9-L'=BY'V;&'+U/-&#'A1X'•Œ0L'gd'‚'—%23.9'“”KU/X'C^'2016'pCR'+<CFX'‚'•-L'=BY'V;&'•\%1&#'£<%PK&#'+O,>'`¤BhE'+U/X'•Œ0L
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 (2016-2009) IC*R:#'T%-U&#'‚'gR$%4#7'INOP&#' "#$7'M#w3^'M#w3^'c}Y (6) G7;H

•W$%^'D&Y€'Q^C9&CL'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP&#'$;R

'C};,@\'Qf<'ZK&#' "#$%&#€'Q^C9&CL'+X%O*4#'INOP&#' "#$7'+O,>
•\:7$'(%,0^€'•()*&#'Df2'•7C/<'7Y

•W$%^'D&Y€''(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cFP"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR$%4#'$;R

_81&#'+<CFX'¥';-U&#

8,934.59,654.29.8%

5.2%

4.3%

8.7%

5.2%

3.3%

91.5%91.2%91.3%90.9%92.6%91.7%-1.0%

8.4%

6.2%

4.7%

89.6%

8,303.7 7,484.2 6,972.5 6,802.4 6,296.8 •\:7$'(%,0^€'‚ƒ4#'„CFo0&'INOP&#' "#$7'y)H#

•W$%^'D&Y€'‚ƒ4#'„CFo&#'‚'gR$%4#'$;R

•\:7$€'‚ƒ4#'„CFo&#'‚'gR$%4#'$;P&'+P<$%&#'Š2%K^

•\:7$'(%,0^€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)H#

•\:7$€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS''gP’Cj&#'INOP0&'+P<$%&#'Š2%K^

'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#'y)Hz'+U/X
•%€'‚ƒ4#'„CFo0&'INOP&#' "#$7'y)Hz'‡#

•\:7$'(%,0^€'•\%1&#'£<%PK&#'+O,>

';<`<'ZK&#' "#$%&#€'C,"̀ H'+X%O*4#'INOP&#' "#$7'+O,>
•\:7$'(%,0^€'•()*&#'Df2'|R'C};,@\

•W$%^'D&Y€'C,"̀ H'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP&#'$;R

•\:7$€'C,"̀ H'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP0&'+P<$%&#'Š2%K^

'y)H#'‡#'Q^C9&CL'+X%O*4#'INOP&#' "#$7'+O,>'+U/X
•%€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#

'y)H#'‡#''C,"̀ H'+X%O*4#'INOP&#' "#$7'+O,>'+U/X
•%€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'+P’Cj&#' "#$%&#

'$;R'‡#'Q^C9&CL'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP&#'$;R'+U/X
•%€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cFP"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR$%4#

•%€'T%-L'+¢N¢'=B#'V;&'•\%1&#'£<%PK&#'+O,>'`BhE'+U/X

•%€'g9-L'=B#'V;&'•\%1&#'£<%PK&#'+O,>'`BhE'+U/X

•\:7$€'Q^C9&CL'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP0&'+P<$%&#'Š2%K^

'$;R'‡#'C,"̀ H'cFP"#$7'+X%O*4#'INOP&#'$;R'+U/X
•%€'(%XCf&#'pC9dS'cFP"#$7'+P’Cj&#'gR$%4#

'(%XCB
G7S#
09-

'(%XCB
G7S#
10-

'(%XCB
G7S#
11-

'(%XCB
G7S#
12-

'(%XCB
G7S#
13-

'(%XCB
G7S#
14-

'(%XCB
G7S#
15-

10,595.8

'(%XCB
G7S#
16-

+U/X
%O-&#

1,2161,4141,4161,4641,4351,4671,4601,536

5,1774,8104,9225,1125,7866,0916,6126,896

5,7486,0926,3816,8287,5838,1208,9369,713

1,2121,4101,4121,4601,4311,4631,4551,531

4,7434,3194,5194,6785,2975,5506,1416,343

91.3%

1,9402,1831,9972,0932,2192,4092,6192,839

9901,0791,0401,0481,0931,1981,3011,382

1,1171,3001,3161,3551,3191,3421,3241,386

8868307907738298939839971.4%

9.1%

10.6%

-1.4%

4,7595,0135,3415,7816,4906,9227,6358,331

9511096105113121132146

17.2%17.7%16.3%15.3%14.4%14.8%14.6%14.2%-2.7%

82.8%82.3%83.7%84.7%85.6%85.2%85.4%85.8%0.4%

92.2%92.2%93.2%92.8%92.1%91.7%90.9%90.5%-0.5%

7.8%7.8%6.8%7.2%7.9%8.3%9.1%9.5%4.4%

48.1%46.4%45.2%-2.5%

57.3%56.7%53.3%-6.0%

50,05545,42355,81455,30657,63157,13857,96257,174
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.1967'pCR' "#$%&#'()’'pC[X'q,U.KL'p%fE'+,LhR'+&7$'G7Y'(C-U&'•XCB7'—_;lK4#'MC<:%&#'CFKPUE7'1924'pCP&#'‚'C,BC†%02%9,]E'‚' "#$%&#'()’'pC[-&'\%F¦'G7Y (1)

(1)

g./0†'‚'yC4#'(C^S#'+9U{ :(14)'Q9{

;f-&#'+.02
+,-,./01&#

+,&C4#'_\#„7
+,-,./01&#

'+/234#
+,-,./01&#

 "#$%&#'()*&

Š+T*‡)„)QE(7$0()DRg)G"?Z).1

'_\;>'(Y';oX'•&¡&'—+&7;&#'‚'r9&#'$CkK>:#'•R'‹¢mK&#'‚'T%-U&#'“0KlE'•¡&#'pCF&#'\7;0&'•#h[X'—•\7§'ḧ^Y'%}'‚ƒ4#'„CFo&#'‚'yC4#'\#hfK2:#'()’7'©PK&#'|^'T%-U&#'+<)l&7'gR $%4#'G#%^Y'+<)l&'+O,027'+l’#7'ªMC,&˜'h†%E'(z
u+HCl0&':z'cF&#%^Y'bl/L'p;fK&#'p;R7'CF<;&' "#$7'+«,}'•R'cF&#%^Y'W#;<#7'CFP^'Q^CPK&CL'\#hOK2:#'•R'gR $%4#'`1l<'•¡&#'h^S#'—CFEC^#`K&CL'IC†%&#'•R'_\;f&#'V;^'•R';OKP<'$CkK>:#'‚'+&CP†'_\%kL'C}\7;L'pC,f0&'T%-U&#

'ž¡}'QJ^'n7;d'•$C1K&7'—+&7;&#'‚'‚ƒ4#'„CFo&#'I#$mL'gR $%4#'+f¢' H#hE'yCK&CL7'—‚ƒ4#'„CFo&#'‚'_$Cd'+,&C^'+ „̂Y'n7;lL'\¡-”<7'yC4#'\#hfK2N&'•#;<;FE'Q9]<'gR $%4#'MCU&C.›'p#`K&:#'•R'“E\;>'p;R7'T%-U&#';dY'–©PE'(z
uT%-U&#'“H#%E'ZK&#'+,0UfK/4#'MC „̂S#'•R'b0ŒK0&'+&CP1&#'yC4#'(C^S#'+9U{'¬C-R'™;dY'ž\CUKRCL'•&­7'® "#$%&#'()’'pC[X®'¯]-”E'G7;&#'‚'C,0P&#'MC.0/&#'(°†'MC „̂S#
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Interest rate risk
The sensitivity of the statement of income and other comprehensive income is the e"ect of the assumed changes in interest rates, based on 
the #oating rate $nancial assets and $nancial liabilities held at December 2016 ,31. The expected e"ect of decrease in interest rate is expect-
ed to be equal and opposite to the e"ect of the increases shown below:

 22. Capital management
The primary objective of the Corporation's capital management is to ensure that it maintains adequate capital ratios in order to support its 
business.
The Corporation manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in business conditions. The capital 
structure comprises the Corporation's paid in capital and reserves which amounted to U.S. & 75,334,666 and U.S. & 49,200,402 as at December 
31 ,2016 and 2015, respectively.

23. Concentration of risk in geographical area
The Corporation carries out its activities in Palestine. The political and economic destabilization in the area increases the risk of carrying out 
business and could adversely a"ect the Corporation's performance.

2015

E"ect on
statement of 

income and other 
comprehensive

 income
-

9,843

Increases in 
interest rate 
(basis points)

 10
10

2016

E"ect on
statement of 

income and other 
comprehensive

 income
59,053 
2,873

Increases in 
interest rate 
(basis points)

 10
10

Currency
JOD

U.S &
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-The fair value of the $nancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

-The fair value of cash in hand and at banks, balances with Palestine Monetary Authority, membership fees receivable and other liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

-The fair value of held to maturity $nancial assets in $nancial markets is determined by reference to quoted prices at the date of the $nancial 
statements.

-The fair values of unquoted $nancial assets that don't have market value is measured at cost after deducting the impairment losses (if any).

21.Risk management
The main risks arising from the Corporation©s $nancial instruments are credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The Corpora-
tion©s Board of Directors reviews and approves policies for managing these risks which are summarized below:

Credit risks
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a $nancial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a $nancial 
loss. With respect to credit risk arising from the other $nancial assets, including cash and cash equivalents and held to maturity $nancial 
assets, the Corporation©s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 
amount of these $nancial assets.

Liquidity risk
The Company limits its liquidity risk by securing bank loans and funding from shareholders. Most of the Corporation`s $nancial liabilities are 
due within a period of less than three months from the date of the $nancial statements.

Foreign currency risk
The e"ect of the expected decrease in exchange rates is equal and opposite to the e"ect of the increase stated below:

2016
ILS

2015
ILS

Increases in 
currency rate

(%)

10

10
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18. Cash and cash equivalent
For the purposes of cash #ow, cash and cash equivalent includes the following:

Cash in hand and at banks
Balances at Palestine Monetary Authority (PMA)

19. Related party transactions
Related parties represent directors and key management personnel of the corporation. The Corporation's board of directors approves 
pricing policies and terms of these transactions. Balances with related parties included in the statement of $nancial position are as follows:

Balances at Palestine 
Monetary Authority
Employees' bene$ts

 Transactions with related parties included in the income statement and other comprehensive income are as follows:

Interest revenue from 
Palestine Monetary Authority
Key management salaries and 
related expenses
Board of Directors expenses * 
bene$ts

20. Fair value measurement
The table below represents a comparison between the carrying amounts and fair values of $nancial instruments as at December 2016 ,31 
and 2015:

Financial assets
Cash in hand and at banks 
Deposits at PMA 
Membership fees receivable
Held to maturity $nancial 
assets
Other Current Assets

Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

Fair value

201520162015

Carrying amount

2016

1,046,039
41,715,712
6,269,579

-
-

49,031,330

32,749
32,749

1,204,050 
16,050,853 

6,800,947

50,690,493 
282,469 

75,028,812

38,495
38,495

1,046,039
 41,715,712

6,269,579

-
-

49,031,330

32,749
32,749

1,204,050
16,050,853
6,800,947

50,877,361
282,469

75,215,680

38,495
38,495

U.S.&U.S.&U.S.&U.S.&

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

1,204,050
16,050,853
17,254,903

1,046,039
41,715,712
42,761,751

      

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

16,050,853
48,624

41,715,712
47,799

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
206,984

280,561

48,388

95,683

161,370 

30,843

Nature of the 
relation

Board of Directors 
Key management

Nature of the 
relation

Board of Directors 
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15. Interest revenue, net

Investment revenue ± long term deposit at PMA 
Investment revenue ± long term deposit at Banks 
Interest revenue from held to maturity $nancial assets 
Pro$ts from held to maturity Islamic $nancial assets 
Bonds amortization, net

16. Employees' expenses

Salaries and wages
Employees transportation
Provision for employees' indemnity
The Corporation's contribution to provident fund 
Travel expenses
Health insurance expenses
Employees' accrued vacations
Training, conferences and meetings 
Telecommunication expenses
Fuel expenses

17. General and administrative expenses

O+ce rent
Board of Directors rewards
Fees and subscriptions
Financial intermediaries commissions
Advertising expenses
Consultations and legal fees
Electricity and water
Telephone, internet and mail
Security and cleaning
O+ce supplies
Annual reports and work plans
Travel and accommodation of the Board of Directors 
Commission fees and bank interests
Hospitality
Buildings fees
Printing and stationery
Other expenses 

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

206,984
20,747
 90,229
23,090

(20,399)
 320,651

95,683
22,875

 -
 -
-

 118,558

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
271,296
34,348
 30,521
29,965
21,222
 13,813

4,985
7,689
4,293
2,864

420,996

197,093
8,392

15,425
15,672
14,059
5,732
9,573
1,420

-
 -

267,366

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
56,337 
40,400 
36,200 
35,288 
26,758 
19,350 
11,645
9,644 
8,151

 3,444 
3,860

 7,988 
4,705 
3,316 
2,167 
2,077 
3,959

275,289

59,833
25,700
 13,314

-
15,644
24,640
9,181
 9,355
 8,923
5,108
4,755
5,143

449
 1,265
2,167
2,338
4,036

191,851
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11. Employees bene"ts

2016
Balance, beginning of year 
Additions
Transferred to provident fund* 
Balance, end of year

2015
Balance, beginning of year 
Additions
Balance, end of year

* During 2016, the Corporation employees have elected a committee to oversee the provident fund and its investments. Therefore, the 
Corporation has transferred the balances to the provident fund bank account which is administered separately.

12. Increase in paid in capital
During 2016, a new local bank was licensed, and according to the Corporation law, an amount of U.S & 100,000 was received.

13. Reserves
According to the article No. (20) of the Corporation's Law, the Corporation has to accumulate reserves until it reaches %3 of total deposits 
that are subject to the provisions of this law. This reserve will be used to achieve the Corporation objectives. The Corporation reserves consist 
of the annual membership fees paid by the members, the return on the investments and any other returns net of the Corporation's expenses. 
The excess for the period is allocated between commercial and Islamic banks reserves based on a percentage of the contribution in member-
ship fees.

14. Membership revenue
This item represents banks' membership fees paid to the Corporation at a rate of %0.03 of the total deposits subject to the provisions of the 
Corporation Law. These fees are calculated on monthly basis and paid on quarterly basis.
    

Commercial banks membership fees 
Islamic banks membership fees

     

Provident fund Total

U.S.& U.S.&
28,874
44,948

(73,822)
-

48,342
75,469

(73,822)
49,989

5,367
23,507
28,874

End of service
 bene$ts

U.S.&
19,468
30,521

-
49,989

4,043
15,425
19,468

9,410
38,932
48,342

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
23,121,280
3,302,546

 26,423,826

21,480,494 
2,649,297

 24,129,791
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8. Property and equipment

December 31 ,2016 
Cost
Balance, beginning of the
year 
Additions  
Balance, end of the year 

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance, beginning of the
year 
Depreciation for the year
Balance, end of the year
Net book value as at 
December 31 ,2016
Net book value as at 
December 31 ,2015

9. Intangible assets
This item represents programs and software systems, following are the details of the movement thereon:

Balance, beginning of the year
Additions during the year 
Amortization
Balance, end of the year

10. Other assets

Interest paid to bondholders
Accrued bond interest revenue 
Accrued deposit interest revenue 
Prepaid expenses
Other  
 

Total

U.S.&

Computers

U.S.&

Furniture

U.S.&

O+ce 
equipment 

U.S.&

Leasehold 
improvements

251,948
15,203

267,151

51,023
48,889
99,912

167,239

200,925

33,862
10,376
44,238

12,184
12,540
24,724

19,514

21,678

55,277
4,827

60,104

11,804
11,542
23,346

36,758

43,473

32,451
-

32,451

8,167
6,507

14,674

17,777

24,284

130,358
-

130,358

18,868
18,300
37,168

93,190

111,490

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

33,807
308

(8,500)
25,615

42,113
-

(8,306)
33,807

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
157,487
 99,489
 23,351
 14,616

2,142
 297,085

-
-
-

15,431
-

15,431
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4.Cash in hand and at banks 

Cash in hand 
Current and demand accounts 
Deposits maturing within 3 months  

5.Balances at Palestine Monetary Authority

Current accounts 
Deposits maturing within 3 months
 
6.Membership fees receivable

This item represents membership fees receivables for the fourth quarter of 2016. 
Membership fees receivable amounted to U.S. & 6,800,947 and U.S. & 6,269,579 as of 
December 2016 ,31 and December 2015 ,31, respectively.

7.Held to maturity "nancial assets 

Bonds quoted in foreign markets*  

Treasury bills ± Central Bank of Jordan**
 
*These bonds mature during a period of one year to six years, with an interest rate from 
%1 to %6. The fair market value of bonds quoted in foreign markets amounted to U.S. & 
47,817,534 as at December 31 ,2016.
**Treasury bills mature during a period of one year to three years, at a discount rate of
 %2 to %3.

 

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
152

155,611
1,048,287
1,204,050

481
15,543

1,010,015
1,046,039

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
6,050,853

10,000,000
16,050,853

32,903,212
8,812,500

41,715,712

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&
48,004,402
2,872,959

50,877,361

-
-
-
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Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash #ows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, balances at banks maturing within three 
months, less banks' deposits maturing after three months and restricted deposits.

Fair value of "nancial instruments
The fair value for $nancial instruments traded in active markets at the $nancial statements date is based on their quoted market price.

The fair value of interest-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash #ow using interest rates for items with similar terms and risk 
characteristics.

For all other $nancial instruments not traded in active markets, the fair value is determined by using market value of similar $nancial 
instrument or the expected discounted cash #ows.

Impairment of "nancial assets
An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a $nancial asset or a group of $nancial assets is 
impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognized in the income statement.

(a) For assets carried at fair value: impairment is the di"erence between the cost and fair value after deducting any loss previously recognized 
in income and other comprehensive income;
(b) For assets carried at cost: impairment is the di"erence between the carrying amount and the present value of future cash #ows discount-
ed at current market rate for similar $nancial assets;
(c) For assets carried at amortized cost: impairment is the di"erence between the carrying amount and the present value of future cash #ows 
discounted at the original e"ective interest rate.

Receivables and other current assets
Receivables and other current assets are stated at original amount less provision of uncollectible amounts (if any).

Account payables and other liabilities
Liabilities are recognized for the amount of goods or services payable, whether claimed by the supplier or not.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when PDIC has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event, and the costs to settle the obligation 
are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated into USD using the rate of exchange ruling at the $nancial statements date. All di"erences are recognized 
in the income and other comprehensive income statement.
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IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as 
operating leases or $nance leases, and to account for those two types of leases di"erently.

IFRS 16  introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use 
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 

The new standard will be e"ective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2019 ,1. Early application is permitted.

3.Summary of signi"cant accounting policies
Revenue recognition 
Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic bene$ts will #ow to the Corporation and the revenue can be 
reliably measured. Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts and sales commissions.

Expenses recognition
Expenses are recognized when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting.

Property and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are 
met. All other costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Any item of property, plant and equipment and any signi$cant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic bene$ts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the di"erence 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of income and other comprehensive 
income when the asset is derecognized.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each $nancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

Held to maturity "nancial assets 
Held-to-maturity $nancial investments are non-derivative $nancial assets with $xed or determinable payments and $xed maturities, which 
the Corporation has the intention and ability to hold-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost plus acquisi-
tion costs. Subsequently, such investments are re-measured at amortized cost, less any impairment losses, using the e"ective interest rate 
method.
 

  

Leasehold improvements                                   
O+ce equipment                                                
Furniture                                                              
Computers                                                          

 
Useful life

(Years)
7
5
5
3
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2.2   Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous $nancial year except that the Corporation has adopted the follow-
ing amended IFRSs during the year:  

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clari"cation of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principles in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that revenue re#ects a pattern 
of economic bene$ts that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is a part) rather than the economic bene$ts that are 
consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and 
may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. These amendments are implemented prospectively with 
allowing early implementation. The Corporation does not expect that these amendments will e"ect the $nancial position or performance.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than signi$cantly change, existing IAS 1 requirements, as follows:
·  The materiality requirements
·  That speci$c line items in the statement(s) of Income Statement and OCI and the statement of $nancial position may be disaggregated
·  That entities have #exibility as to the order in which they present the notes to $nancial statements.
The following IFRS and amendments have been issued but are not yet e"ective, and have not been adopted by the Corporation:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments:
During July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 ªFinancial Instrumentsº with all the three phases. IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for recognizing 
and measuring $nancial assets, $nancial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-$nancial items. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 ªFinancial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurementº. IFRS 9 as issued will be implemented at the mandatory date on January 2018 ,1, which will 
have an impact on the recognition and measurement of $nancial assets.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 speci$es the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from contracts with customers. It applies to all entities that enter into 
contracts to provide goods or services to their customers, unless the contracts are in the scope of other IFRSs, such as IAS 17 Leases. 
- IFRS 15 supersedes the following:
- IAS 11 Construction Contracts 
- IAS 18 Revenue
- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs
- IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
- IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 
- SIC31- RevenueÐBarter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 

The standard is e"ective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2018 ,1, and early adoption is permitted.

IFRS 16 Leases
During January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 ªLeasesº which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases. 
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Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 2016 ,31

1. General
Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation (the Corporation) was established by virtue of the Presidential Decree Law No. (7) for the year 2013 
(the Law) which was issued on May 29 ,2013 by the President of the State of Palestine and the Chairman of the Executive Committee of 
Palestine Liberation Organization, and became e"ective on November 7 ,2013.

Equity of the Corporation
Equity of the Corporation consists of the following:
± The government contribution of U.S. & 20 million or its equivalent to be paid within thirty days from the e"ective date of the Law.
± Non-refundable incorporation fees of U.S. & 100,000 or its equivalent to be paid by each member during a maximum period of $fteen days 
from the joining date in the Corporation.
± Reserves that are accumulated until they reach %3 of the total deposits subject to the provisions of the Law in accordance to article No. 
(20) of the Law. These reserves should be used to achieve the Corporation's objectives.
Sources of Funding the Corporation

Sources of funding of the Corporation consist of the following:
± Annual membership fees paid by members of the Corporation on a quarterly basis in accordance with directives issued by the Board of 
Directors.
± Investment returns.
± Loans obtained by the Corporation under the provisions of the Law.
± Grants received by the Corporation and approved by the Board of Directors.

The objectives of the Corporation is to protect customers' deposits' held with member banks within certain limits in order to encourage 
savings and strengthen con$dence in the Palestinian banking system in addition to increase public awareness about Palestine Deposit 
Insurance Corporation system.
Number of sta" of the Corporation as of December 2016 was (14).
The $nancial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issuance according to their meeting number 
(1/2017) held on March 21 ,2013.

2. Basis of preparation of "nancial statements and changes in accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of "nancial statements
The $nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The $nancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The $nancial statements have been presented in U.S. Dollar, which is the functional currency of the Corporation.
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The attached notes 1 to 23 form part of these $nancial statements
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Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 2016 ,31

Operating Activities
Excess for the year
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for employees bene$ts 
Interest revenue

Change in working capital:
Membership fees receivable
Other assets
Other liabilities
Transfers to provident fund
Net cash #ows from operating activities

Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible 
assets
Purchase of held-to±maturity $nancial assets 
Interest received
Net cash #ows (used in) from investing activities
Financing Activities
Paid in capital
Cash #ows from "nancing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year  
 

Notes

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

18

26,034,264

57,389
75,469

(320,651)
25,846,471

(531,368)
(1,327)

5,746
(73,822)

25,245,700

(15,511)
(50,877,361)

40,324
50,852,548

100,000
100,000

(25,506,848)
42,761,751
17,254,903

23,859,602

52,665
38,932

(118,558)
23,832,641

(162,128)
271

12,592
-

23,683,376

(69,805)
-

118,558
48,753

-
-

23,732,129
19,029,622
42,761,751
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Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 2016 ,31

2016
Balance, beginning of the year 
Increase in paid in capital (Note 12)  
Total comprehensive income for the year  
Transferred to reserves 
Balance, end of the year

  
2015
Balance, beginning of the year 
Total comprehensive income for the year  
Transferred to reserves  
Balance, end of the year

  
 

The attached notes 1 to 23 form part of these $nancial statements

3

Total equity

U.S.&

Retained
Earnings

U.S.&

Commercial
Banks Reserve

U.S.&

Islamic
Banks Reserve

U.S.&

Paid in capital

U.S.&

49,200,402
100,000

26,034,264
-

75,334,666

25,340,800
23,859,602

-
49,200,402

-
-

26,034,264
(26,034,264)

-

-
23,859,602

(23,859,602)
-

40,660,424
-
-

22,780,407
63,440,831

19,407,437
-

21,252,987
40,660,424

4,839,978
-
-

3,253,857
8,093,835

2,233,363
-

2,606,615
4,839,978

3,700,000
100,000

-
-

3,800,000

3,700,000
-
-

3,700,000
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Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
As at December 2016 ,31

Revenues
  
Membership fees revenue
Interest revenue, net
Currency exchange gan

Expenses
Employees' expenses
General and administrative expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 

  
Excess for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income  
 

Notes

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

14
15

16
17
9,8

26,423,826
320,651
43,461

26,787,938

(420,996)
(275,289)
(57,389)

(753,674)

26,034,264
-

26,034,264

24,129,791
118,558
123,135

24,371,484

(267,366)
(191,851)
(52,665)

(511,882)

23,859,602
-

23,859,602
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Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 2016 ,31

ASSETS
  
Cash in hand and at banks 
Balances with Palestine Monetary 
Authority (PMA) 
Membership fees receivable 
Held-to-maturity $nancial assets 
Property and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Other assets 
Total assets  
  
 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities  
Employees bene$ts 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Equity 
Paid in capital  
Islamic banks' reserve 
Commercial banks' reserve 
Total equity 
Total liabilities and equity  

Notes

2016 2015

U.S.& U.S.&

4

5
6
7
8
9
10

11

1
13
13

1,204,050

16,050,853
6,800,947

50,877,361
167,239
25,615

297,085
75,423,150

49,989
38,495
88,484

3,800,000
8,093,831

63,440,831
75,334,666
75,423,150

1,046,039

41,715,712
6,269,579

-
200,925
33,807
15,431

49,281,493

48,342
32,749
81,091

3,700,000
4,839,978

40,660,424
49,200,402
49,281,493

The attached notes 1 to 23 form part of these $nancial statements

1
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the $nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is su+cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 "Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the e"ectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

   Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, if any, and related disclosures 
made by management.

  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signi$cant doubt on the Corporation's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the $nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

   Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the $nancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the $nancial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signi$cant 
audit $ndings, including any signi$cant de$ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters
The $nancial statements of the Corporation as of December 2015 ,31 and June 2015 ,30 were audited and reviewed by other auditors whose 
reports expressed unquali$ed opinions dated on March 2016 ,17 and September 2015 ,6, respectively.

Ernst & Young ± Middle East
License # 2012/206

March 2017 ,21 
Ramallah, Palestine
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A member $rm of Ernst * Young Global Limited

Independent Auditors' Report
to the Chairman and the Members of the Board of Directors of Palestine Deposit 
Insurance Corporation

Opinion
We have audited the $nancial statements of Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation (the Corporation), which comprise the statement of 
$nancial position as at December 2016 ,31, and the statement of income and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash #ows for the year then ended, and notes to the $nancial statements, including a summary of signi$cant accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying $nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the $nancial position of the Corporation as at 
December 2016 ,31 and its $nancial performance and its cash #ows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Corporation in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA 
code), and we have ful$lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is su+cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these $nancial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of $nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the $nancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Corporation's $nancial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the $nancial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in#uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this $nancial statements.

Ernst * Young
P.O. Box 1373
7th Floor,
PADICO House Bldg. 
Al-Masyoun 
Ramallah-Palestine

Tel: +97222421011 
Fax: +97222422324
www.ey.com
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Preliminary results of the Strategic Plan showed that the targeted reserve level of %3 of total deposits 
subject to the provisions of the Law could be attained by 2022. 

Medium-Term Key Indicators:

Table (7) : Medium -Term Key Indicators

Deposit subject to the provisions of PDIC's law (million dollars)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Immediate compensation value (US & million)

The PDIC's reserves (US & million)

The PDIC's reserves to deposits subject to the provisions 
of the law (%)

The PDIC's reserves to immediate compensation value (%)

Target reserve to immediate compensation value(%)

Immediate compensation value to deposits supject to provisions 
of the law (%)

8,936.3 9,712.9 10,470.6 11,287.3 12,167.7 13,116.7

2,618.6 2,839.1 2,997.2 3,163.1 3,337.2 3,519.9

49.20 75.33 118.43 165.32 207.03 252.89

1.9% 2.7% 4.0% 5.2% 6.2% 7.2%

0.551% 0.776% 1.131% 1.465% 1.701% 1.928%

10.2% 10.3% 10.5% 10.7% 10.9% 11.2%

29.3% 29.2% 28.6% 28.0% 27.4% 26.8%

Actual ExpectedItem
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The Achievements and Activities in 2016:

PDIC has accomplished numerous achievements and held a series of events aimed at promoting $nancial stability of the national economy.

I. international conventions, conferences and meetings
PDIC has signed a number of memoranda of understanding to promote local and international cooperation and the exchange of expertise 
in all areas of deposit insurance system.  This has contributed to the stability of the banking system in Palestine.  Furthermore, PDIC took part 
in several international and local conferences;

- The 15th Annual General Conference of the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI), which was held in Seoul, South Korea.  

Moreover, PDIC was elected as the representative of the Middle East and North Africa at the Executive Committee of the International Associa-
tion of Deposit Insurers; which is in charge of drawing up and updating general international policies pertinent to deposit insurance system. 

- PDIC has also signed a cooperation agreement with the PMA to facilitate the investment process thought the PMA; this comes within PDIC's 
investment plan, which aims at enabling it to reinforce reserves prepared for insurance of depositors' deposits with the licensed banks operat-
ing in Palestine. 

- PDIC has also signed an agreement of cooperation with the German Development Bank (KFW Development Bank) and the Palestinian 

Ministry of Finance for the bene$t of the corporation.  This agreement comes within the framework of German - Palestinian cooperation.  
Hence, According to the agreement, KFW would award PDIC 10 million Euros as a contribution to its capital and on behalf of the government, 
and would provide technical assistance and logistical support to PDIC.

II. Raising General Awareness of the Palestinian Deposit Insurance Corporation
In the framework of PDIC's compliance with the deposit insurance systems, and to realize its goals of raising the level of public awareness in 
Palestine's deposit insurance system, PDIC held a number of workshops and public awareness meetings for a number of member banks, 
Institutions, societies and Palestinian universities. During these workshops, the participants were introduced to the framework of PDIC in 

terms of history of establishment, nature of work, role, tasks, and importance of its participation in complementing the Palestinian $nancial 

safety net.

The workshops also targeted the Palestinian public to educate it on the importance of the PDIC presence as a major contributor to the 

$nancial and banking sector stability in Palestine and as a supporter of con$dence in the Palestinian banking system. 

PDIC has conviction that these workshops are necessary to educate the Palestinian public on the role it plays to provide security/ safety to 
depositors and increase their   con$dence in the Palestinian banking system.

III. PDIC Strategic Plan
PDIC prepared a medium-term $nancial program that is based on two sets of measurement indicators. The $rst set includes guiding 
indicators for variables that do not fall within the scope of the Corporation's control, but e"ectively and fundamentally in#uence the 
ful$llment of its duties, like the growth rate of deposits subject to the provisions of the Law. The second set includes institutional perfor-
mance indicators that re#ect PDIC's real performance and represent variables that fall within the scope of the Corporations' control, and 
in#uence the ful$llment of its duties like the return on investments.

- PDIC conducts a comprehensive yearly revision of these indicators, and updates the assumptions in light of recent developments in the 

economy in general, and PDIC operations in speci$c. Most importantly, these assumptions relate to deposit's yearly growth, and the member-
ship fees collected from member banks annually.

- Medium-term indicators have also been compiled relying on data on deposits and depositors for past years, and establishing average basis 
for the growth rates for these variables.

- PDIC currently charges membership fees based on a 0.3 % #at rate applied equally to all member banks regardless of risk assessment for 
individual banks.

- In line with PDIC Law which allows charging fees from member banks based on their risk ranking, and to comply with the Core Principles for 
E"ective Deposit Insurance Systems; PDIC, in cooperation with the PMA and the Association of Banks in Palestine (ABP), will commence work 
to establish the main features of a new risk-based fee-collection system that is in line with PMA instructions and internationally 
approved-standards and/or standards set by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS).



Chapter 3: 
PDIC's Achievements 
and Activities in 2016
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PDIC is funded through annual membership fees, collected from member banks as well as from the returns on investments of the deposit 
insurance system.  Moreover, the Corporation may secure $nancial grants from any entity approved by its Board and may if its own $nancial 
resources fall short. 

2.4.Membership
PDIC membership is mandatory for all banks licensed by the PMA, regardless of whether they are commercial or Islamic.  The number of 
banks that were subject to the provisions of the Law was $fteen at end 2016. Of these, seven were local banks and eight were foreign banks.

2.5 Membership Fees
A member bank is required to pay membership fees on a quarterly basis. The membership fee is equal to %0.3 of the total value of the bank's 
deposits subject to PDIC Law.  The Board of Directors may adjust an individual banks percentage fee based on the bank's risk ranking accord-
ing to previously agreed criteria with the PMA and the Association of Banks in Palestine (ABP), pursuant to instructions issued in that respect. 
The BOD may also revise and amend annual membership percentages and adopt a new fee- calculation method.

2.6 Compensation of Depositors
Upon publication of the PMA decision to liquidate a member bank, the PDIC becomes legally responsible for reimbursing insured depositors 
with that bank.  The PDIC is obliged to compensate depositors in accordance with the speci$ed coverage ceiling.  The coverage ceiling for 
each depositor  is  calculated on all of his/her deposits combined, including interest accrued and bene$ts earned, on the date of publication 
of the liquidation decision of the member bank in the Palestinian Gazette.

The reimbursement sum becomes payable once the liquidation decision is published and must be paid 
by the PDIC within 30 days of the submission of the depositor's claim.

2.7 Liquidation

Pursuant to the Presidential Decree-Law No. (7) Of 2013, PDIC is the sole liquidator of a failing bank following the issuance of a liquidation 
decision by the Palestine Monetary Authority.

PDIC shall have the authority to take all legal measures necessary to safeguard the bank's rights, and conclude the liquidation proceedings.  
PDIC shall replace depositors, to the extent it will reimburse them, and the reimbursed amounts shall be registered as debts owed to PDIC by 
the liquidated bank.  PDIC shall maintain the right to recover the payout on insured deposits prior to all other shareholders and creditors.

PDIC has full power to take necessary measures to: terminate a bank's operations, settle bank's debts, collect its dues and take all necessary 
measures aimed at: recovering its rights and conducting an inventory of its accounts.   Subsequently disposing of the bank's movable and 
non-movable assets or part thereof, or take any other action or measure required to conclude the liquidation proceedings in order to pay 
back depositors and settle its debts.

2.8 Reserves Management

The PDIC will exert every e"ort to reinforce its reserves to ensure the protection of depositors' rights with member banks.  Hence, it should 
establish reserves amounting to no less than %3 of total deposits subject to the provisions of its Law.  The reserves include membership fees 
collected from member banks on quarterly basis, returns on investments and other returns after deducting all expenses.
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Figure (15): Financing Sources of the Deposit Insurance System in Palestine

Financing Sources
of Deposit Isurance
System in Palestine

 Annual
 Membership

Fees

 Returns on
Investment

LoansGrants

   b- Research Unit
This unit was established at the beginning of PDIC's work, as PDIC has strong conviction that scienti$c research globally plays a  key role in 
economic progress and prosperity. The unit's tasks and responsibilities include the following: providing PDIC with an appropriate informa-
tional, analytical methodological framework, necessary for its work, and achieving its principle of transparency and reliability. To these two 
ends, PDIC produces   professional periodical publications, which meet all international standards/criteria.

·     Information Technology Division
The Information and Technology Division seeks to be an e"ective player in rolling the wheel of development in PDIC.  On the organization 
and administrative level and level of services provided by the corporation. To these ends, PDIC uses state-of-the-art technology in the world 
that would serve the work environment. This is in addition to providing innovative solutions and preparation of back up plans to provide 
information security, decrease risks to lowest levels and protect PDIC's assets.  The division also meets the technical needs of other depart-
ments and units.

·     Public Relations Division
The Public Relations Department is one of the basic supporting departments of PDIC. It is PDIC's ªwindowº into the foreign world and local 
community. It reinforces means of communication and cooperation locally and abroad with all targeted sections of society. It disseminates 
PDIC's vision and mission in all best ways and means possible, it creates an opportunity for all targeted sections to have easy access to them 
and send them messages in a positive and practical way while preserving privacy of each section. The division also prepares materials to be 
published. 

·     Human Resources Unit
Human resources is an essential part of any institution or company, it actually re#ects its sustainability and success. It is critical to an employ-
ee-oriented, productive work place.  PDIC has established its own human resources department in order to recruit and appoint the best 
human resources in the Palestinian market. This department provides the best services to the corporation's sta". In addition, it works to 
achieve highest levels of e+ciency in performance and increase employees' motivation, energize and engage them, and maintain harmony 
in the workplace to raise the level of performance and productivity. 

·     Gaza O$ce
Gaza o+ce implements and enforces PDIC's policies in Gaza Strip. It is the corporation's representative in Gaza Strip.  The o+ce awareness 
the public in Gaza Strip on the Palestinian deposits insurance system and PDIC in terms of its work and goals.  The o+ce holds workshops 
and represents PDIC in all banking events. 

2.3 Equity of Deposit Insurance System and Financing Sources

PDIC's Equity is comprised of USD 20 million representing the government`s share and a USD 100 thousand unrecoverable Incorporation fee 
paid by each member bank within 15 days of the initiation of membership, in addition to the reserves established from the yearly member-
ship fees of member banks.
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·     General Director

The Director General of PDIC carries out duties and authorities, assigned to him/her pursuant to the PDIC Law, to manage the Corporation's 
a"airs, including implementation of policies and the decisions approved by the Board of Directors, supervision of the Corporation's 
executive sta" and monitoring the proper implementation of day-to-day operations. 

·     Administration and Finance Department

This department is responsible for bookkeeping and accounting functions, maintaining assets and adequate $nancial resources and the 

timely provision of accurate information for decision makers. The department also secures PDIC's needs with respect to supplies and mainte-
nance of equipment, machinery and software necessary for PDIC proper operation and achievement of its goals.

·     Risk Analysis and Insurance Department

This department is assigned several important tasks and responsibilities that contribute to the implementation and development of PDIC's 
policies, reinforce risk-management principles and promote con$dence in the Palestinian $nancial system.

   a- Risks and Insurance Unit
This division is mainly responsible for the follow-up of fee collection from member banks. It is also tasked with preparing for the application 
of the risk-based fee collection system, in collaboration with the PMA and the ABP, for the purpose of mitigating operational risks, and 
ensuring fair contribution by banks to membership fees, encouraging banks to improve on risk-monitoring tools. The division also sets in 
place appropriate measures to mitigate potential risks banks face, and conduct stress tests, as a way of strengthening and promoting risk 

    b- Liquidation Unit

This division is responsible for undertaking the tasks and responsibilities entrusted to PDIC as the liquidator of any bank pursuant to the 

PDIC Law and regulations, instructions and decisions issued for that purpose. The division is also in charge of putting in place and develop-
ing appropriate policies for the implementation of the liquidation process, in a manner that guarantees appropriate procedures  are 
e"ectively and e+ciently followed.  Moreover, the division formulates and develops depositor reimbursement procedures pursuant to the 
PDIC Law and the regulations, instructions and decisions issued for that purpose.

   c- The Legal Unit
This division is responsible for handling all legal matters of PDIC, following-up on implementation with the competent authorities, drafting 
PDIC's contract and agreements and reporting periodically on the division's work.

·     Internal Audit  Unit
The activity of the Internal Audit Unit is closely linked with the Audit and Risks Committee of the Board of Directors. The Unit is in charge of 
assessing the validity and soundness of the PDIC's various activities and providing recommendations in view of the audit the assessment 
and the analysis results of various departments in order to enable them to ful$l their responsibilities e"ectively and e+ciently.

·     Investment and Financing Department
The department is assigned the responsibility of providing data and information needed to support the planning and development process-
es in PDIC. It is also entrusted with the management of the PDIC's investments in line with the investment policy approved by the BOD and 
compliant with the provisions of the PDIC Law.

   a- Investment Unit
This unit is in charge of employing PDIC's resources within a carefully studied investment policy and strategy and approved by its Board of 
Directors. It primarily aims at preserving capital and developing its reserves allocated to insurance of   depositors' money. This in addition to 
providing a suitable return within a low level of risks, all in line with PDIC's goals  and role in reinforcing $nancial stability taking into consider-
ation that  its  investments have high liquidity which  would enable it to respond to emergency situations.
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PDIC Executive and Administrative Sta"- Head Quarter Ramallah

PDIC Administrative Sta"-Gzaza O$ce

According to the provisions of its Law, PDIC enjoys vast authority as may be necessary to exercise its function as an insurer of deposits and 
bank liquidator. The Law grants it also supervisory authority realized through the regular interchange of data and information on member 
banks with the PMA as per certain protocols that guarantee all information necessary is provided to the PDIC to achieve its objectives.
     

2.2 PDIC Management 

Board of Directors

 PDIC is managed and supervised by a Board of Directors comprised of 7 members

1. The Board  chaired by  the Governor of Palestine Monetary Authority
2. A Representative of the Ministry of Finance 
3. The Companies Controller of  the Ministry of National Economy
4. Four independent members appointed by Presidential decree-law upon   a recommendation of the Chairman of the Board. 
The Directors serve for a three-year term, which is renewable once. 

Responsibilities and Authorities of the Board of Directors
The PDIC Board is charged with several responsibilities. These include formulating the PDIC's policies, setting strategies, approving the 
annual budget, adopting plans and policies for investment of the PDIC's funds, and specifying participating banks' annual membership fee, 
approving the organizational structure and job descriptions, endorsing internal regulations and operating procedures, passing and 
implementing bylaws, instructions, and procedures for conducting operations determining coverage limits and other duties, as required.

PDIC Executive and Administrative Sta#

PDIC had 14 employees at the end of 2016 coming from di"erent disciplines and specializations, as compared to 11 employees in 2015.



29

 "#$%&#'()*&'+,-,./01&#'+/234#
PALESTINE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

1.Deposit Insurance System in Palestine

The provision of e+cient and sound mechanisms to protect depositor's funds, protect safeguard banks from faltering, and maintain $nancial 
stability of the banking system are essential, given the critical role banks play in impacting the macro-economy.  Therefore, bank's capacity 
to operate e+ciently within an economy depends on the extent to which they meet their $nancial obligations, and thus earn depositors' 
con$dence and increased placement.

The failure of a bank and its inability to meet the claims of depositors may threaten $nancial stability and become ominous of an acute 
$nancial crisis within the banking system leading to a decline in public con$dence in the performance of the entire banking system. To avoid 
such a crisis, state authorities establish a ªdeposit insurance systemº to serve as a major component of an e"ective $nancial safety net to 
counter future crises facing the banks. The need for such a system increases with the rising transition towards the open-door economy 
model, and the globalization of banking as banks started to accept deposits and o"er services across borders. As a result, a $nancial crisis 
could become contagious and spread from one country to the other.

A ªdeposit insurance systemº is a mechanism established by governments through laws and regulations and intended to protect depositors 
these (particularly with small accounts) against the loss of their deposits in case of a bank failure, thereby safeguarding the $nancial stability 
of the banking system as a whole and promoting savings and economic growth.

PDIC is part of the $nancial safety net in the country and plays an important role in the $nancial stability of 
the banking sector in speci$c and the economy in general

2. Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC)

2.1 Establishment 
Palestine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) was founded pursuant to the provisions of the Presidential
Law by Decree No. (7) Of 2013, having legal entity and enjoying legal capacity as a $nancially and administratively independent corporation 
to ful$l its mandated function to protect depositors with member banks, encourage saving and promote con$dence in the Palestinian 
banking system.

Figure (14): Financial Safety Net in Palestine

PMA

MOFPDIC



Chapter 2# 
Palestine Deposit 
Insurance Corporation



27

 "#$%&#'()*&'+,-,./01&#'+/234#
PALESTINE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

Table (6): Key Deposit Indicators for Customers and Depositors with Member Banks (2009-2016)

The main indicator of customer deposits and depositors at member banks(2009-2016)

Number of fully insured depositors (in thousand)

Fully insured deposits (all deposits that are less than or
equal to the coverage limit) (USD million)

Number depositors subject to provisions of PDIC's
(in thousand)

8,934.5 9,654.2 9.8%

5.2%

4.3%

8.7%

5.2%

3.3%

91.5% 91.2% 91.3% 90.9% 92.6% 91.7% -1.0%

8.4%

6.2%

4.7%

89.6%

8,303.77,484.26,972.56,802.46,296.8Total Deposits of the banking system (USD million)

Total Depositors in the banking sector (in thousand)

Avarage deposit value for total depositors
in the banking sector (USD)

Deposits subject to provisions of PDIC's law (USD million)

Average deposit value for depositors whose deposits
are subject to the provisions of PDIC's law (USD)

Deposits subject to the provisions of PDIC'slaw
to total deposits of the banking sector (%)

Immediate compensation value (USD million)

Partially insured deposits (all deposits that are exceeded
the coverage limit) (USD million)

Number of partially insured depositors (in thousand)

Average deposit value for partially insured depositors
(USD)

Fully insured depositors to total number of depositors,who
are subject to provisions of the law (%)

Fully insured deposits to total deposit subject to the
provisions of the law (%)
The ratio of partially insured deposits to total deposit 
subject to the provisions of the law of deposits (%)

Partially insured depositor to the total number of
depositors,who are subject to provisins of the law(%)

The concentration of prompt reimbursement amount for the 
largest three banks (%)

Average deposit value for fully insured (USD)

The concentration of prompt reimbursement amount for 
the largest two banks (%)

10,595.8

16-Dec15-Dec14-Dec13-Dec12-Dec11-Dec10-Dec9-Dec Grow
Rate

1,216 1,414 1,416 1,464 1,435 1,467 1,460 1,536

5,177 4,810 4,922 5,112 5,786 6,091 6,612 6,896

5,748 6,092 6,381 6,828 7,583 8,120 8,936 9,713

1,212 1,410 1,412 1,460 1,431 1,463 1,455 1,531

4,743 4,319 4,519 4,678 5,297 5,550 6,141 6,343

91.3%

1,940 2,183 1,997 2,093 2,219 2,409 2,619 2,839

990 1,079 1,040 1,048 1,093 1,198 1,301 1,382

1,117 1,300 1,316 1,355 1,319 1,342 1,324 1,386

886 830 790 773 829 893 983 997 1.4%

9.1%

10.6%

-1.4%

4,759 5,013 5,341 5,781 6,490 6,922 7,635 8,331

95 110 96 105 113 121 132 146

17.2% 17.7% 16.3% 15.3% 14.4% 14.8% 14.6% 14.2% -2.7%

82.8% 82.3% 83.7% 84.7% 85.6% 85.2% 85.4% 85.8% 0.4%

92.2% 92.2% 93.2% 92.8% 92.1% 91.7% 90.9% 90.5% -0.5%

7.8% 7.8% 6.8% 7.2% 7.9% 8.3% 9.1% 9.5% 4.4%

48.1% 46.4% 45.2% -2.5%

57.3% 56.7% 53.3% -6.0%

50,055 45,423 55,814 55,306 57,631 57,13857,962 57,174
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Deposits subject to the provisions of the Law constituted 91.7 % of total deposits with member banks as at end of 2016.

Fully- insured deposits

Fully insured deposits in accordance with the Law ± deposits with balance less or equal to USD 10,000 or its equivalent in any other currency- 
constituted %14.2 of total deposits subject to the provisions of the Law by end of 2016, amounting to USD 1,382 million and belonging to 
1,386 thousand depositors with an average deposit value of USD 997, compared to USD 1,301 million total deposits as of end of 2015 belong-
ing to1,324 thousand depositors with an average deposit value of USD 983.  The percentage of fully insured depositors was %90.5 of total 
depositors whose deposits were subject to the provisions of the Law by the end of 2016.

Fully insured depositors represented 90.5 % of total depositors whose deposits were subject to the provisions of 
the PDIC's Law as at end of 2016.

Fully insured deposits represented 14.2 % of total deposits subject to the provisions of the PDIC's Law as at end of 2016.

Partially insured deposits

Deposits subject to the provisions of the Law in excess of a value of USD 10,000 or its equivalent in other currencies ± that is partially insured 
deposits- amounted to about USD 8,331 million by end of 2016, compared to USD 7,635 million by end of 2015, constituting 85.8 percent of 
total deposits subject to the provisions of the Law.  These deposits belonged to about 146 thousand depositors, constituting %9.5 of total 
depositors whose deposits were subject to the provisions of Law, with an average deposit value of USD 57,173 by the end of 2016, compared 
to 132 thousand depositors with an average deposit value of USD 57,962 by as end of 2015.

Partially insured depositors represented  %9.5 of total depositors whose deposits were subject to the provisions of 
the PDIC's Law as at end of 2016

Partially insured deposits represented %85.8 of total deposits subject to the provisions of the PDIC's Law as at end of 2016

a) Prompt reimbursement

The concentration of prompt reimbursement value with the largest bank stood at 23.9 % as of end 2016 ,  %45.2 for the two largest banks 

and %53.3 for the three largest banks.



Figure (13): Deposits Subject to the Provisions of the Law

Deposit subject
provisions of

PDIC's law 91.7%

Deposit non subject
to provisions of

PDIC's law
8.3%

Scope of coverage

Deposits subject to the provisions of the Law totaled about USD 9,712.9 million by the end of 2016, compared to USD 8,936.3 million by the 
end of 2015, marking a %8.7 increase between the two years. Deposits belonged to about 1,531 thousand depositors with an average deposit 
value of USD 6,343 in 2016 compared to 1,455 thousand depositors with an average deposit value of USD 6,141 at the end of 2015.
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Number of Branches as the end of 2016

Figure (12): Bank Branches and Representative O$ce End of 2016
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Table (5): Number of branches and o+ces of Banks in Palestine, End of 2016

Operating banks in 
Palestine as the end 2016

Local Banks

Foregin Bank

Bank of Palestine

Quds Bank

The National Bank

Palestine Islamic Bank

Arab Islamic Bank

Palestine Investment Bank

Safa Bank

Egyptian Arab Land Bank

Jordan Kuwait Bank

Arab Bank

Cairo Amman Bank

Housing Bank

Bank of Jordan

Jordan Ahli Bank

Jordan Commercial Bank

Year of establishment Branch & o$ces as the end
of 2016 

Total assets as the end of
 2016 (USD million)

1995

2006

1997

1996

1995

2016

1994

1986

1995

1994

1995

1994

1994

1995

67

37

18

29

18

17

1

31

21

14

35

6

5

6

4

3,453.3

996.3

970.1

825.1

809.0

355.3

87.1

3,536.8

1,010.9

632.3

607.9

386.6

223.0

169.1

127.2

Source: PMA



Figure (11): Change in Total liabilities and Shareholders' Equity of Banks Operating in Palestine (2006 ± 2016)
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(The main Financial Performance Indicators for Member Banks)(2010-2016)

Table (4): Key Financial Performance Indicators (2010-2016)

Ratio

Direct credit facilities (net) to total asset

Capital adequacy ratio

Return on avarage assets (befor tax)

Non-performing facillities to total direct facillities

Investments in "nancial assets to total assets

47.7%

8.5%

2.18%

17.96%

1.48%

45.6%

8.8%

2.14%

18.32%

1.47%

40.8%

9.5%

2.55%

18.94%

1.9%

39.4%

9.0%

2.9%

20.0%

1.9%

41.0%

8.8%

3.1%

20.3%

1.8%

37.4%

10.4%

2.8%

21.1%

1.9%

32.1%

2016201520142013201220112010

10.6%

3.1%

21.4%

2.1%
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Following is a summary of the most important developments of the member banks' key performance indicators in 2016:

A. Number of branches and representative o$ces

The number of branches and representative o+ces of banks operating in Palestine rose by end of 2016 to 309, as compared to 274 by end 
of 2015.  Thirty-$ve new branches/o+ces were opened in 2016.  This increase resulted from the branching policy endorsed by the PMA to 
enhance and improve easy access banking services o"ered to the public.

B. Structure of assets and liabilities

- Total assets of banks operating in Palestine amounted to around USD 13,859.5 million by the end of 2016 compared to USD 12,295.1 million 
by the end of the previous year, increasing by USD 1,564.3 million or a %12.7 increase, compared to an increase by USD 759.6 million or a 
%6.6 increase by the end of 2015.
- Total liabilities for banks operating in Palestine amounted to about USD 12,175.8 million by the end of 2016 compared to USD 10,831.2 
million by the end of 2015, increasing by USD 1,344.6 million, or a %12.4 increase, compared to an increase by USD 759.7 million or a %7.5 
increase by the end of the previous year.
- Total owners' equity at banks operating in Palestine amounted to around USD 1,683.6 million by the end of 2016 compared to USD 1,463.9 
million by the end of 2015, increasing by USD 219.7 million, or a %15 increase, compared to a decrease of USD 108.7 million or a %0.01 
decrease in 2015.

Member banks' investments in $nancial assets (stocks and bonds inside Palestine and abroad) amounted to about USD 1,201.3 million by 
end of 2016 compared to USD 1,111.6 million by end of 2015, thus representing USD 89.7 million increase or %8.1. Investments represented 
%8.7 of net assets in 2016 compared to %9 in 2015. 

Figure (10): Total Assets of Banks Operating in Palestine, End of  2016
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2.2 Credit Facilities Portfolio

- Direct credit facilities (net) amounted to about USD 6,767.3 million by end of 2016 compared to USD 5,740.7 million by end of 2015, an 
increase of USD 1,026.6 million 17.9 %. These facilities constituted %48.8 of net assets by end of 2016, compared to %46.7 by end of the 
previous year.
- O" balance sheet items (indirect credit facilities) of the banking system amounted to   around USD 1,339.4 million by end of 2016 compared 
to USD 1,160.5 million by end of 2015, an increase of %15.4. These credit facilities constituted %9.7 of net assets in 2016 compared to %9.4 in 
2015.

2.3 Non - performing loans

- The ratio of non-performing loans to direct credit facilities increased by %1.9.  It was %2.18 for banks operating in Palestine by end of 2016, 
as opposed to %2.14 by the end of 2015.
- The percentage of loan loss provisions to non-performing facilities was about %65.85 for the banking sector in Palestine at end of 2016 
compared to %67.37 at end of 2015, a %2.3 decrease.
- Credit facilities granted to related parties to total credit facilities increased by %16.7.  It was %4.70 in 2016, compared to %4.03 in 2015.

2.4 Key performance indicators of the banking sector

a. Capital Adequacy Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio for the overall banking system was about %17.96 in 2016 compared to %18.32 in 2015.  PMA instructions set the 
minimum requirement for capital adequacy ratio at %12 though Basel II requires a minimum ratio of %8.

b. Pro"tability

- As for the income statement, net pro$ts before taxes for the banking system by the end of 2016 totaled USD 195.8 million compared to USD 
175.3 million by the end of 2015, marking an increase of USD 20.5 million or the equivalent of %11.7.
- Income before taxes to average total assets of the banking system amounted to %1.48   in 2016 compared to %1.47 in 2015. 
- Income before taxes to average tier capital of the banking system was about %15.58 in 2016, Compared to %14.90 in 2015

2.5 Performance of member banks

There was an improvement in the performance of the member banks - 15 banks operating in West Bank and Gaza Strip in terms of total depos-
its and credits.  This was re#ected in the PMA's measures and decisions, coupled with the supervisory instructions and stringent measures it 
advocates in line with best international practices, thus ensuring $nancial stability in Palestine. This enabled banks to improve their $nancial 
position in particular, and contribute to a stable banking system.

Figure (9): Net income for the banks operating in Palestine (2008-2016)
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Figure (8): Depositors Holding Deposits in Commercial Banks in
Comparison with Depositors Holding Deposits in Islamic Banks

Islamic Bank
14.5%

Commercial
Banks 85.5%

Figure (7): Deposits in Commercial Banks As Opposed to
Deposits in Islamic Banks

Islamic Bank
12.1%

Commercial
Banks 87.9%

The deposits as at end 2016 The number of depositors as at end 2016

By end of 2016, in comparison with 2015, deposits held by commercial banks accounted for the lion's share: %87.9 of total deposits.  Howev-
er, there was %1.35 drop in deposits compared to 2015.  In comparison, deposits held by Islamic banks constituted %12.1 of total deposits, 
a %11 rise over the previous year.

Depositors in commercial banks decreased by about %1.16, representing %85.5 of total depositors in 2016, compared with %86.5 in 2015.  
Hence, the percentage of depositors at Islamic banks increased accordingly.

Table(3) : Comercial Bank Deposits Versus Islamic Bank Deposits 2009-2016

The Allocation of deposits across various bank groups(2009-2016)

Year The number of depositors 
(in thousands)

Total

2009

2010

5,763

Commercial 
Banks Islamic Banks Commercial 

Banks
Deposits
(million &)

Deposits
(in thousands)Islamic Banks

6,283

534

519

1,007

1,225

210

190

6,297

6,802

1,216

1,414

2011

2012

6,435

6,858

537

626

1,223

1,256

193

208

6,973

7,484

1,416

1,464

2013

2014

7,553

8,052.8

751

881.7

1,233

1,245

203

222

8,304

8,935

1,435

1,467

2015 8,600.3 1,053.9 1,264 196 9,654 1,460

2016 9,310.3 1,285.4 1,313 223 10,596 1,536

Deposit (in & million)



In 2016, the shares in total deposits of both the individual deposits and public sector deposits and institutions and associations' deposits 
dropped by %68.9,%.6.4 and %2.4 respectively.  In contrast, the contribution of companies to total deposits rose over the same period.

Individual deposits represented %68.9 of total deposits in the banking sector as of end of 2016.

In 2016, as opposed to 2015, the amount of deposits in Israeli shekel grew by %8.6.  In contrast, there were growth rates of %10.3 ,%6.7 and 
%35.2 for the Jordanian dinar, the US dollar and all other currencies, respectively
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Figure (6): Distribution of Deposits by Sector (2015 - 2016) 
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 Table (1) : Distribution of deposits with banks on the di"erent sectors (in million Dollars) and growth rates

Individuals

Growth rates

 Companies Institutions
and associations Public sector

2015

2016

6,777.6

7,305.6

7.8%

1,947.0

2,360.5

21.2%

273.8

255.6

-6.7%

655.8

674.1

%2.8

Table (2) : Distribution of customer deposits by currencies (million Dollars)

NIS deposits

Growth rates

JD deposits USD deposits Other deposits

2015

2016

3,229.6

3,506.3

8.6%

2,477.2

2,643.7

6.7%

3,578.6

3,947.2

10.3%

368.9

498.7

35.2%

19

 "#$%&#'()*&'+,-,./01&#'+/234#
PALESTINE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION



12,000

M
ill

io
n 

&

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0
2015201420132012201120102009 2016

Figure (5): Historical development of deposits in banking system (2009 - 2016)

Deposit subject to provisionsTotal deposit at members banks

The rate of unemployment in the workforce increased from %25.9 in 2015 to %26.9 in 2016.  
Where the unemployment rate between West Bank and Gaza Strip remains high, the rate of unemployment in Gaza Strip was %41.7 while in 
West Bank was %18.2.   In terms of gender, %22.2 of males were unemployed in 2016 as opposed to %44.7 of females.

Palestinian Banking Sector Indicators

The banking sector is a fundamental element of the Palestinian economy.  As such, improvement in the banking sector's indicators is regard-

ed as an indication of signi$cant economic achievement the Palestine Monetary Authority (PMA) makes every e"ort to maintain $nancial 
stability in the economic by working to improve key $nancial indicators, those indicators of banks operating in Palestine showed improved 
performance in 2016 compared to 2015.  Following is a summary of the most important improvements in performance indicators:

Total Deposits

Total customer deposits in the Palestinian banking sector amounted to USD 10,595.8 million by end of 2016, compared to USD 9,654.2 

million by end of 2015, an increase of %9.8.   In comparison, the deposits at end of 2015 increased by %8.1 equivalent to USD 719.9 million 
over end  of the year 2015.
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Figure (4): Palestinian unemployment rate (2012-2016)
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Figure (3): Aggregate Demand in Palestine (2012 - 2016)
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1.3 Aggregate Demand 

During 2016, the aggregate demand major components (consumer spending, government spending, investment and net exports grew at 
varying rates. Whereas the growth in $nal consumption expenditure hovered around the growth rate of the previous year %5.4.  In contrast, 
the growth rate of investment reached %7.4 after experiencing a decline in 2015. 
Trade de$cit analysis indicated that the deepening trade de$cit mainly re#ected a decline in imports (%1.8) while exports (%5.5).

1.4 Labor market indicators

According to the Palestinian Central Bureau of Statistics, the workforce in 2016 amounted to 1,341,000.  Of these, 844,600 were in West Bank 
and 496,400 in Gaza Strip.  The workforce participation rate in West Bank was %45.6 as opposed to %46.1 in Gaza Strip.

  (1) According to the preliminary data from the Palestinian Central Bureau of Statistics (PCBS)

(1)

Figure (2): GDP per Capita in Palestine (2012 - 2016)
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Economic Indicators

Economic indicators re#ect the status of a country's economy.  Economically, a country strives to improve the living standards of its citizens 
by acceleration of economic growth and development

1. Economic Indicators for Palestine

Unlike other economies, the Palestinian economy is characterized by being severely restricted by the Israeli occupation, which deprives it 

from a substantial (if not the bulk) of its water and national resources, restricts the movement of people and #ow of goods and delivery of 
services within and across borders, and generally stunts economic growth.
This section of the report will review key macroeconomic indicators for the year 2016        , in order to portray the Palestinian economic perfor-
mance, including indicators like GDP, aggregate demand and unemployment rate.

1.1 Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

In 2016, GDP increased by %4, compared to the previous year, to reach about USD 8,037 million. The rise mainly came as a result of an 

increase in investment expenditure related to e"orts to reconstruct Gaza, in addition to some pickup in consumption expenditure in both 
West Bank and Gaza, funded by loans and foreign grants.

1.2 GDP per capita

GDP per capita is used as a measure of the standard of living or an individual's income in an economy. As such, in 2016 the GDP per capita 

rose to USD 1,765.9, or 1.2 % over the year 2015 to USD1,746.8. However, these percentages remain very small when compared to the 
average per capita income in Israel.  The cause of this pronounced disparity in average per capita income compared to Israel is attributed 
largely to the rigorous blockade Israel imposes on Palestinian's exports and imports, thus stunting the growth of both real GDP and per 
capita income.
            

(1) According to the preliminary data from the Palestinian Central Bureau of Statistics (PCBS)

(1)
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Figure (1)5 GDP in Palestine for (2012 ± 2016)
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I am honored to present to you PDIC's 2016 Third Annual Report. This report highlights PDIC's achievements 
in 2016.  A basic pillar and key partner in the Palestinian $nancial safety net.  
PDIC, for the third year in a row, has contributed to the $nancial and banking stability in Palestine and has 
worked to foster the Palestinian and international   con$dence in the banking system.  
In 2016, there was a remarkable development in deposit indicators, deposits subject to the provisions of PDIC 
Law amounted to USD 9,712.9 million by the end of 2016 as opposed to USD 8,936.3 million by the end of 
2015, or %8.7 rise.  These deposits belonged to 1,531 depositors, with an average deposit value of USD 6,343 
in 2016 in comparison with 1,455 depositors and with an average deposit value of USD 6,144 by the end of 
2015. Furthermore, fully insured depositors constituted some %90.5 of all depositors, their deposits represent-
ed %14.2 of total deposits.  These fully insured deposits had a balance less or equal to USD 10,000 or equiva-
lent in other currencies.

On the $nancial side, PDIC's revenues from membership fees of member banks and their return comprised of 
almost USD 26.7 million in 2016, of this amount, 3.3 million dollars came from membership fees of Islamic 
banks.  Parallel to this, PDIC has managed to foster and increase its© reserves to some USD 71.5 million in 2016, 
or %57.2 increase over 2015.

On the local and international levels, PDIC continued to devote its e"orts to achieve its mission and vision; 
accordingly, PDIC gave a signi$cant interest to education of the public on the deposit insurance system in 
Palestine.  It held and organized a number of workshops and public awareness meetings for a number of 
banks, companies, institutions, including universities and colleges. Which allowed participants to learn about 
PDIC in terms of history, nature, scope of work, role and responsibilities.

In 2016, PDIC signed a number of memoranda of understanding with counterpart institutions in Jordan, 
Turkey, and Morocco; it also signed a memorandum of understanding with PMA.  These memos aim at reinforc-
ing cooperation, and exchange of expertise at national and international levels.  
In addition to that, PDIC  sta"  have also participated  in a number of international and local conferences,  
workshops  and events  to  enrich  their knowledge  and allow them to acquire new skills  relevant  to their 
work.

It is worth mentioning that PDIC was elected in 2016 as the Middle East and North Africa©s representative in 
the International Association of Deposit Insurance (IADI).  This association sets standards for deposit 
insurance and updates policies pertinent to the deposit insurance system.

To conclude, I wish to thank PDIC©s chairman, the Board of Directors members, and the sta" for their dedica-
tion and e"orts.   Con$rming that we will continue to build on our three-year success, raise our performance 
at both the national and international levels in line with the best and most up-to-date international practices 
to achieve our mission and objectives to maintain the stability of the Palestinian banking system.
 

Director General 
Zaher Hammouz

Message from the Director General
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On behalf of my colleagues in the Board of Directors, I am pleased to meet you again and present to you 
PDIC's Third Annual Report for the year 2016, I'm truly proud of this leading professional institution and it©s 
vital role in the banking sector, as PDIC is deservedly one of the pillars of the banking safety net in Palestine.
     
Though it was established recently, PDIC enjoys a remarkable presence at the national and international 
levels, and it has participated in several Arab and international conferences, thus enabling it to exchange 
expertise and be up-to-dated of the latest developments in the protection of depositors' savings in banks.  
This has contributed to the reinforcement of $nancial stability and to the boosting of public con$dence in the 
Palestinian banking sector.
      
The di+cult economic conditions in Palestine in 2016 degraded due to the permanence of the Israeli military 
occupation measures and policies on the ground.  These measures and policies have deprived the country 
from economic development opportunities through the destruction of the Palestinian economic infrastruc-
tures and deepening of economic dependence, which led to an increase in poverty and unemployment rates.  
In spite of that, the PMA has succeeded in advancing the Palestinian banking sector and in making it most 
modern in terms of quality of banking services, thus matching global banking systems, out of PMA's responsi-
bility to preserve $nancial and cash #ow stability and secure safety and development of the Palestinian 
$nancial and banking sector.
    
The key performance indicators of the Palestinian banking sector at the end of 2016 revealed positive results; 
the clients' deposits in licensed banks at the end of 2016 increased by 941.5 million or %9.8 rise in comparison 
with 2015. The deposits amounted to USD10,595.8 million.  Besides, the outstanding balance of net credit 
facilities awarded by licensed banks at the end of 2016 amounted to USD 1,026.6 million or %17.9 in compari-
son with 2015. The outstanding balance almost reached USD 6,767.3 million.  The total assets in licensed 
banks in 2016 recorded an increase of USD 1,590.2 or %12.6 rise over their counterpart in 2015. The total 
assets in 2016 amounted to USD 14,190.1 million. The banks continued to maintain high rates of capital 
adequacy ratio, higher than the rate set by the PMA and higher than the rates set by international agencies. 
These rates amounted to %17.96 by end of 2016. Furthermore, there was a rise in non-performing credit 
facilities - total gross loan ratio. The rise amounted to %2.18 by end of 2016 as opposed to %2.14 by end of 
2015.

To conclude, I kindly invite you to peruse the PDIC's Third Annual Report 2016, and i have high hopes that 
2017 will be a turning point and a step towards the development of Palestine©s national economy, i reiterate 
my con$dence in the safety and strength of the banking sector.
 
 
 
 
Chairman of  Board
Azzam Shawwa
Governor of Palestine Monetary Authority

Message from the Chairman

Chairman of  Board
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I. PDIC Board Committees

A .Governance Committee

· Mr. Rasim  Kamal, Chairperson
· Dr. Hatem Sarhan
· Mr. Mohammed  El-Aydi

B. Assets and Liabilities  Committee

· His Excellency Mr. Azzam  Shawwa, Chairperson
· Dr. Said  Haifa 
· Dr. Bassem  Khoury

C. Investment  Committee

· His Excellency Mr. Azzam  Shawwa, Chairperson
· Dr. Said Haifa
· Dr. Basem  Khoury

D. Audit  and Risks  Committee

· Mr. Ahmed  Al-Sabah, Chairperson
· Mr. Rasim Kamal
· Mr. Mohammed El-Aydi

II. Committee(s)  established  by PDIC's  Bylaws

Liquidation Committee

· Director-General Mr. Zaher  Hammouz,  Chairperson
· Companies Controller Representative, Ministry of  National Economy, Mr. Tareq Rabay'a
· PMA Banking Supervision and Inspection Department Representative, Dr. Riyad Abu - Shehadeh
· Advisors  chosen by PDIC Board, depending on their  experience  and competency in accounting, audit and law:
   - Financial Advisor, Dr. Hanna Qu"a
   - Legal Advisor, Mr. Sharhabeel  Al zaeem
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Mr. Al-Sabah held several positions with the Ministry of Finance. Since 2013, he has held the position of Account-
ant General with the Ministry of Finance, and Director of Governmental Property Accounts.  Over the period 
2008  -2007, he served as Director of General Accounts during 2007  -2003, he was Director General of the 
Treasury, and prior to that, he was Director General of Payments.

Mr. Al-Sabah is a member of the Board of numerous national institutions, including the
Establishment for the Management and Development of Orphans Fund, the Supreme
Council for Civil Defense and the Palestinian Electricity Transmission Ltd.

He holds a graduate degree in Business Administration from Birzeit University, (2007)

Rasem Kamal is a lawyer and is the managing partner of Kamal * Associates - Attorneys and Counsellors-at-Law 
(Kamal * Associates) in Al-Bireh - Ramallah.  He is specialized in business, banking, $nance, corporate, labor and 
real estate laws. He provides legal and consultancy services to dozens of Palestinian and international clients 
coming from government agencies, international organizations, diplomatic missions, civil society organiza-
tions, donor-funded projects, multi-billion dollar cross-border corporations,family businesses as well as private 
net wealth individuals. He also co-authored and participated in the drafting (as well as advocacy) e"orts of 
numerous Palestinian laws and by-laws. Mr. Kamal taught law at the Birzeit University School of Law between 
the years (2009 - 2007). He is also a licensed translator and a founding member and BOD member of the Palestin-
ian Licensed Translators Association.

Mr. Kamal is a holder of a Master of Laws (LL.M.) degree from the University of San Francisco in California, U.S. 
(where he was enrolled in his graduate studies as a Fulbright Scholar), as well as a Bachelor of Laws (LL.B.) 
degree from the University of Jordan in Amman. He also graduated in June 2016 as an Executive Master of 
Business Administration (MBA) Program from the Kellogg School of Management ± Northwestern University (in 
Chicago ± Illinois, U.S.).

Mr. Ahmed Al-Sabah
Board member

Mr. Rasim Kamal
Board member
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Dr. Bassem Khoury
Board member

Dr. Bassem Khoury
Dr. Khoury's biography is rife with achievements in various areas. He established Pharmacare Plc, a pharmaceuti-
cal manufacturing company, and has chaired its Board of Directors ever since.

He also established Premium Pharmacare in Malta in 2009 and the National Company for Agro Industries in 
2007, in addition to being co-founder of the Palestine Insurance
Company in 1996.

In 2009, Dr. Khoury was appointed Minister of National Economy. He held several other positions, including 
Chairman of the Palestinian Federation of Industries (2009-2006), Chairman of Union of Palestinian Pharmaceu-
tical Manufacturers (2004-2001) and Head of the Scienti$c Committee in the Palestinian Pharmaceutical Associ-
ation (1994-1992).  Dr. Khoury also served as member of the Technical Committee for Trade and Industry, which 
advised the Palestinian peace negotiators (1992-1990), and member of the Board of the Palestine Trade Promo-
tion Organization and the Palestine Trade Center (Paltrade) (2002-1993).

Dr. Khoury is member of several organizations.  He is member of the Birzeit University Board of Trustees, 
member of the Board of Directors of the Edward Said National Conservatory of Music, member of the Board of 
Directors of the Palestine Capital Market Authority and member of the Board of the Society of Saint Yves for 
Human Rights.

Dr. Khoury holds a degree in Industrial Pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma, USA (1983).

Dr. Sarhan is currently Companies Controller in the Ministry of National Economy. He held several positions in 
MOE, where during the periods (2010-2006) he was Director General for Policies, Analysis and Statistics; during 
the period (2006-2005) he was Companies Controller; and during (2005 -1995), he was Head of Companies 
Registration Department.

Dr. Sarhan participated in several seminars and courses, held both locally and abroad.
He participated in the Administrative Development of Administrative Skills seminar (Arab Experts) in 1996, and 
in Industrial Property Rights course held in Geneva in 2000, in Arbitration and Mediation seminar in 2002 and 
in a several seminars and conferences on commercial agencies, and in the draft Income Tax Law and Compa-
nies Law in the West Bank and the Gaza Strip. In 2006, he attained a Commercial Accreditation from the Palestin-
ian Ministry of Justice.

Dr Sarhan holds a PhD in Law from Moscow University (1994).
Dr. Hatem Sarhan
Board member
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Mr. Aydi, an ex-banker, has both central and commercial banking experience. He started his career with the 
Central Bank of Jordan, working in the Bank's  Supervision and Economic Research   departments

In Palestine, he worked as an expert in the Banking Supervision Department and participated in drafting the 
$rst Banks Law with the IMF experts. He also joined the Arab Palestine Investment Bank as a manager of credit 
operations.

In the Gulf, Mr. Aydi worked as an operations manager of the main branch of the Commercial Bank of Kuwait.  
Later, he worked as a senior credit manager of the Construction Contracts $nance units at both Al- Ahli Bank of 
Kuwait and the National Bank of Qatar.  He also held two senior positions as manager of inspection and 
$nancial manager of two leading companies in money change and construction contracting companies in 
Kuwait, respectively.

In Jordan, he worked for Bank of Jordan as a manager of the bank's computer * automation company founded 
speci$cally to automate the bank's operations. He also joined the Industrial Modernization Programme EJADA, 
funded by the European Union, as a senior $nancial advisor and ran a loan guarantee fund for industrialists.  He 
also worked for Al Mouasher Group as a $nancial advisor.

In Syria, he worked for the Credit Facility II to Syrian SMEs, $nanced by the European Investment Bank, and run 
by Frankfurt School of Finance * Management-Consultancy Arm.
Mr. Aydi holds a bachelor degree in business administration from Beirut Arab University and a diploma in 
statistics from London Polytechnic, UK

Dr. Said Haifa was born in Al-Mazra Al-Sharqiyya in Palestine in 1951.

Dr. Haifa attained BSc in economics and statistics from the University of Jordan in 1974. In 1979 he received his 
MA in economics and international economics from McGill University, Montreal, Canada and a PhD in econom-
ics with a concentration in monetary theory from the same university in 1984.

Dr. Haifa joined Birzeit University in 1980. He was appointed Head of the Economics
Department (1986- 1984), Dean of the Faculty of Business and Economics (1989±1986),
then Head of the Economics Department (2011- 2006), and again for the period from
(2012) as Coordinator for MA in Economics Program (2011 -2007) and again (2012).

Dr. Haifa was member of the Palestinian delegation - Regional Economic Development Working
Group- and additionally coordinator for the World Bank Macroeconomics Team, (1994 ± 1991).

Dr. Haifa has served as board member in several local and international institutions and
conducted several studies aimed at promoting and developing the agriculture and industry
sectors in Palestine. He was member of the PMA Board of Directors (2012 ± 2009).

Dr. Haifa currently occupies the position of Head of Economics Department and Director of the
MA in economics program in Birzeit University.

Mr. Mohammed El Aydi
Board member

Dr. Said Haifa
Board member
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Presidents Organization (YPO); the Mahmoud Abbas Foundation; the Palestine Power and Generating Compa-
ny; Yasser Arafat Foundation; and Palestine Education for Employment. Mr. Shawwa is also a member of the 
Union of Arab Bankers. Previously, Mr. Shawwa chaired the Boards of several institutions such as Reef for 
Micro$nance, NatHealth, Gaza Sporting Club, and Atfaluna Society for Deaf Children.

Mr. Azzam Shawwa was born in Kuwait in 1963, and later on in the year, he relocated along with his family to 
Gaza city, Palestine. In 1988, he graduated from Lemoyne-Owen College in Memphis, Tennessee, where he 
received his Bachelors of Science in Mathematics with honors. Mr. Shawwa is married to Amal Bseiso, and 
together they have two sons (Tamer and Nadim) and one daughter (Aida).



Mr. Azzam Shawwa was appointed by President Mahmoud Abbas by a Presidential Decree on November ,20 
2015 as the Governor and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Palestine Monetary Authority.

Mr. Shawwa is a prominent, accomplished Palestinian banker and public sector $gure. In 2003, he was appoint-
ed as Minister of Energy in the Palestinian National Authority, where he spent Over three years of active, 
outstanding public service. Mr. Shawwa revealed a strong proclivity for leadership early on in his formative 
years, including as head of the General Union of the Palestinian Students at the U.S. university where he did 
his undergraduate studies.

Mr. Shawwas' banker career was marked by a number of pioneering, audacious initiatives and reforms. In 
1989, he joined the Bank of Palestine as its Foreign Relations Manager% and as such, he successfully expanded 
the bank's presence, role and network in Palestine and beyond. In 1994, Mr. Shawwa assumed the position of 
the Regional Head of Gazan Branches of the Arab Bank (Palestine), the largest banking group in Palestine, and 
a member of the Arab Banks' vast regional and international banking network.

In 2007, Mr. Shawwas' banking career achieved a new high as he took over as General Manager of the Palestini-
an Al-Quds Bank. There, Mr. Shawwa e"ected a fresh start for the bank, involving embarking on a wide-rang-
ing restructuring of its most critical departments% launching of several new or enhanced products, and 
services% and substantially boosting the banks' role and overall business image.

Throughout 2012, Mr. Shawwa chaired the Association of Banks in Palestine, which he substantially invigorat-
ed and enabled to render enhanced services to its members and the Palestinian banking community at large.

In March 2013, Mr. Shawwa joined the Palestine Commercial Bank, where he succeeded to signi$cantly 
expand its geographical reach, market share and customer base. In 2014, he took the crucial step of raising the 
bank's capital and market share by issuing convertible bonds, an innovative,unprecedented measure (within 
the Palestinian banking sector), which strengthened the bank's $nances and signi$cantly contributed to the 
developing and deepening of the local capital market.

Since its inception in 2002, Mr. Shawwa has been a distinguished, active member of the Board of Directors of 
the Palestine Investment Fund (PIF), Palestine's sovereign wealth and investment fund. As the states' principal 
developmental investment arm, PIF operates as an independent public sector corporate entity, primarily 
aimed at promoting sustainable economic development by mobilizing local and foreign investments% and 
securing and managing remunerative, longrun returns on the funds' investments, for the ultimate bene$t and 
welfare of the Palestinian state and peoples' present and future generations.

Finally, Mr. Shawwa currently chairs the Boards of Directors of both the Palestine Avenir for Childhood Founda-
tion, and the Weight Lifting Association, and sits on the Al-Quds Open Universitys' Board of Trustees. He is also 
a member of the Boards of several other organizations, including the Businessmen Association% the Young 

 Board of directors

"

Board Chairman
Mr. Azzam Shawwa
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Our vision
To reach a leading professional position in insurance deposits at the regional and international levels.

Our mission
To increase con$dence in the Palestinian banking system and protect depositors' savings in member banks.

Our Core Values
· Credibility and transparency: Adhering to the highest ethical and professional standards when carrying out duties e"ectively 
   and e+ciently.
· Loyalty: Promoting the values of responsibility, loyalty and dedication towards PDIC, sta" and stakeholders
· Professionalism and excellence: Applying the best international standards, practices, skills, knowledge and expertise
· Teamwork: Working collaboratively in good spirits and maintaining e"ective communication lines with parties involved
· Continuous training: o"ering sta" continuous training opportunities to advance technically and professionally, and keep abreast 
   of international best practices

Our objectives
· To build up an appropriate level of reserves in order to ensure the provision of protection to depositors  in  member banks
· To manage compensation and liquidation processes e+ciently and e"ectively
· To foster a risk-informed culture in the banking sector
· To foster public con$dence in the Palestinian banking system and contribute to maintaining its stability 
· To build greater awareness of the deposit insurance system in Palestine
·To build an international relations network with the deposit insurance corporations worldwide to strengthen relations and exchange
  experience.
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Glossary
Member Banks
All Islamic and conventional Palestinian banks and branches of foreign banks operating in Palestine licensed by Palestine Monetary Authority 
(PMA)

Deposits Subject to the Provisions of the Law
All kinds of deposits held by member banks in all currencies except:
· Government and governmental entity deposits and  PMA deposits
· Inter-member deposits, whether with banks or with other $nancial institutions
· Cash collaterals within the limits of the value of extended facilities guaranteed by the said collaterals
· Deposits of persons related to member banks in accordance with the provisions of the e"ective   Banking Law 
· Deposits of a member-bank auditor and/or deposits of a member of the sharia supervisory board of a member bank
· Restricted investment funds as speci$ed by the Board of Directors 
· Deposits of insurance companies and $nancial brokerage companies

Deposits subject to prompt reimbursement
Total deposits, subject to the provisions of the law per depositor per bank, not exceeding the coverage limit of USD 10,000 (ten thousand US 
dollars) or its equivalent in other currencies, are subject to prompt reimbursement upon liquidation of a member bank

Fully insured deposits
Deposits subject to full reimbursement according to the provisions of the law equal or less than the coverage limit of USD 10,000 (ten 
thousand US dollars) or its equivalent in other currencies

Partially insured deposits
Deposits subject to the provisions of the Law that are in excess of the coverage limit of USD 10,000 (ten thousand US dollars) or its equivalent 
in other currencies

Coverage limit
The maximum level of insurance sum per depositor per member bank when a member bank is liquidated equal to USD 10,000 (ten thousand 
US dollars) or its equivalent in other currencies

International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI)
A non-pro$t organization, incorporating a separate legal entity, domiciled at the Bank for International Settlements in Basel, Switzerland. The 
Association's objectives are to contribute to the stability of $nancial systems by promoting international cooperation and   to exchange 
expertise in the $eld of deposit insurance. IADI currently represents 83 deposit insurers, 10 associates and 14 partners.

Core Principles for E%ective Deposit Insurance Systems
A set of 16 basic principles for the operation of e"ective deposit insurance systems issued by the International Association of Deposit Insurers 
(IADI) and Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)
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